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Application:	Hellenic	Classical	Charter	Schools
-	Staten	Island
Joy	Petrakos	-	Joy.Petrakos@hccs-nys.org
2020-2021	Annual	Report

Summary

ID:	0000000111
Status:	Annual	Report	Submission

Entry	1	School	Info	and	Cover	Page
Completed	-	Aug	2	2021

Instructions

Required	of	ALL	Charter	Schools

Each	 Annual	 Report	 begins	 with	 a	 completed	 School	 Information	 and	 Cover	 Page.	 The	 information	 is
collected	in	a	survey	format	within	Annual	Report	portal.	When	entering	information	in	the	portal,	some
of	 the	 following	 items	may	not	 appear,	depending	on	your	authorizer	and/or	 your	 responses	 to	 related
items.

Entry	1	School	Information	and	Cover	Page

(New	schools	that	were	not	open	for	instruction	for	the	2020-2021	school	year	are	not	required

to	complete	or	submit	an	annual	report	this	year).	

Please	be	advised	that	you	will	need	to	complete	this	cover	page	(including	signatures)	before	all	of	the
other	tasks	assigned	to	you	by	your	school's	authorizer	are	visible	on	your	task	page.	While	completing	this
cover	page	task,	please	ensure	that	you	select	the	correct	authorizer	(as	of	June	30,	2021)	or	you	may
not	be	assigned	the	correct	tasks.

BASIC	INFORMATION
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a.	SCHOOL	NAME

(Select	name	from	the	drop	down	menu)

HELLENIC	CLASSICAL	CHARTER	SCHOOL	-	STATEN	ISLAND	353100861175

a1.	Popular	School	Name

HCCS-SI

b.	CHARTER	AUTHORIZER	(As	of	June	30th,	2021)

Please	select	the	correct	authorizer	as	of	June	30,	2021	or	you	may	not	be	assigned	the	correct	tasks.

BOARD	OF	REGENTS

c.	DISTRICT	/	CSD	OF	LOCATION

CSD	#31	-	STATEN	ISLAND

d.	DATE	OF	INITIAL	CHARTER

12/2018

e.	DATE	FIRST	OPENED	FOR	INSTRUCTION

9/2019
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f.	APPROVED	SCHOOL	MISSION		(Regents,	NYCDOE,	and	Buffalo	BOE	authorized	schools	only)

MISSION	STATEMENT

The	Hellenic	Classical	Charter	Schools	will	provide	a	diverse	student	body	with	a	rigorous	education	in	a
dynamic	environment.	Using	a	standards-based	curriculum,	enriched	with	the	Greek	and	Latin
languages,	students	will	engage	in	dialogue	using	the	Socratic	Method	to	become	critical	thinkers.
Students	will	become	college	and	career	ready	and	well-prepared	to	succeed	and	contribute	to	the	global
community	as	responsible	citizens.

g.	KEY	DESIGN	ELEMENTS	(Regents,	NYCDOE,	and	Buffalo	BOE	authorized	schools	only)

KEY	 DESIGN	 ELEMENTS	 (Briefly	 describe	 each	 Key	 Design	 Elements	 (KDE)	 as	 presented	 in	 the	 schools
approved	 charter.	 	 KDEs	 are	 those	 general	 aspects	 of	 the	 school	 that	 are	 innovative	 or	 unique	 to	 the
school’s	mission	and	goals,	are	core	to	the	school’s	overall	design,	and	are	critical	to	its	success.

KDE	1 1.	A	rigorous	classical	education	that	is	rich	in
challenging	content	–	HCCS	provides	rigorous
instruction	in	a	classical	education	model	that	uses
standards-based	curriculum,	didactic	instruction,
coaching,	and	intensive	academic	support.	HCCS
blends	the	Paideia	Model	for	instruction	that	mixes
the	rigors	of	a	classical	education	with	inclusive
teaching	and	learning	with	the	workshop	model,
which	is	based	on	Howard	Gardner’s	theory	of
multiple	intelligences	and	Benjamin	Bloom’s	work
regarding	strategies	to	help	students	engage	in	the
highest	levels	of	thinking—i.e.	analysis,	synthesis
and	evaluation.

KDE	2 2.	Supplementing	instruction	with	classical	study	of
the	Greek	and	Latin	languages,	as	well	as	history,
art	and	other	cultural	and	classical	studies	-	The
Greek	instruction	program,	which	includes
acquisition	of	the	Greek	language	and	the	study	of
Greek	history	and	culture	within	a	rigorous
academic	model	that	includes	the	standards-based
curriculum,	provides	students	with	unique	and
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outstanding	educational	experiences	that	support
their	growth	and	improve	their	competitiveness	in
the	global	economy.	The	alignment	of	the	Greek
program	curriculum	with	the	ELA	curriculum
ensures	that	the	reading,	writing	and	language	arts
instruction	in	English	and	in	Greek	are
complimentary.

KDE	3 3.	Preparing	students	for	long-term	academic
success	-	HCCS	focuses	on	the	mission	of	college
and	career	readiness	for	our	students	by	helping
them	build	habits	of	mind	necessary	for	long-term
academic	success.	We	help	our	students	and
families	understand	the	high	school	admissions
process,	as	well	as	college	preparation,	and	other
practices	that	support	them	in	preparing	for,
selecting	and	applying	for	entrance	into	high
quality	high	schools.
Following	is	a	summary	of	progress	in	each	of	the
three	essential	questions	that	comprise	the
framework.	

KDE	4 (No	response)

KDE	5 (No	response)

KDE	6 (No	response)

KDE	7 (No	response)

KDE	8 (No	response)

KDE	9 (No	response)

KDE	10 (No	response)

Need	additional	space	for	variables

No



5	/	44

h.	SCHOOL	WEB	ADDRESS	(URL)

https://www.hccs-nys.org

i.	TOTAL	MAX	APPROVED	ENROLLMENT	FOR	THE	2020-2021	SCHOOL	YEAR	(exclude	Pre-K

program	enrollment)

250

j.	TOTAL	STUDENT	ENROLLMENT	ON	JUNE	30,	2021	(exclude	Pre-K	program	enrollment)

159

k.	GRADES	SERVED	IN	SCHOOL	YEAR	2020-2021	(exclude	Pre-K	program	students)

Check	all	that	apply

Grades	Served K,	1,	2

l1.	DOES	THE	SCHOOL	CONTRACT	WITH	A	CHARTER	OR	EDUCATIONAL	MANAGEMENT

ORGANIZATION?

	

No

FACILITIES	INFORMATION

https://www.hccs-nys.org/
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m.	FACILITIES

Will	the	school	maintain	or	operate	multiple	sites	in	2021-2022?

Yes,	2	sites

School	Site	1	(Primary)

m1.	SCHOOL	SITES

Please	provide	information	on	Site	1	for	the	upcoming	school	year.

Physical
Address

Phone	Number District/CSD Grades	to	be
Served	at	Site
for	coming
year	(K-5,	6-9,
etc.)

Receives
Rental
Assistance	for
Which	Grades
(If	yes,	enter
the	appropriate
grades.	If	no,
enter	No).

Site	1
1641	Richmond
Avenue,	Staten
Island,	10314

718-499-0957 NYC	CSD	31 K-3 K-3
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m1a.	Please	provide	the	contact	information	for	Site	1.

Name Work	Phone Alternate	Phone Email	Address

School	Leader Christina	Tettonis 718-499-0957 718-499-0958 CTettonis@hccs-
nys.org

Operational	Leader Joy	Petrakos 718-499-0957 718-499-0958 Joy.Petrakos@hccs-
nys.org

Compliance
Contact Joy	Petrakos 718-499-0957 718-499-0958 Joy.Petrakos@hccs-

nys.org

Complaint	Contact Joy	Petrakos,	Cathy
Kakleas 718-499-0957 718-499-0958 Joy.Petrakos@hccs-

nys.org

DASA	Coordinator Shannon	Donohue 718-499-0957 718-499-0958 SDonohue@hccs-
nys.org

Phone	Contact	for
After	Hours
Emergencies

Joy	Petrakos,	Cathy
Kakleas 917-561-2622 917-971-9185 Joy.Petrakos@hccs-

nys.org

m1b.	Is	site	1	in	public	(co-located)	space	or	in	private	space?

Private	Space

mailto:CTettonis@hccs-nys.org
mailto:Joy.Petrakos@hccs-nys.org
mailto:Joy.Petrakos@hccs-nys.org
mailto:Joy.Petrakos@hccs-nys.org
mailto:SDonohue@hccs-nys.org
mailto:Joy.Petrakos@hccs-nys.org
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IF	LOCATED	IN	PRIVATE	SPACE	IN	NYC	OR	IN	DISTRICTS	OUTSIDE	NYC

m1d.	Upload	a	current	Certificate	of	Occupancy	(COO)	and	the	annual	Fire	 Inspection	Report

for	school	site	1	if	located	in	private	space	in	NYC	or	located	outside	of	NYC	.

Certificate	 of	 Occupancy	 and	 Fire	 Inspection.	 	 Provide	 a	 copy	 of	 a	 current	 and	 non-expired

certificate	of	occupancy	(if	outside	NYC	or	in	private	space	in	NYC).	For	schools	that	are	not	in

district	 space	 (NYC	 co-locations),	 provide	 a	 copy	 of	 a	 current	 and	 non-expired	 certificate	 of

occupancy,	and	a	copy	of	the	current	annual	fire	inspection	results,	which	should	be	dated	on

or	after	July	1,	2021.

Site	1	Certificate	of	Occupancy	(COO)

certificate	of	occupancy	-	1641	Richmond	Avenue.pdf

Filename:	certificate	of	occupancy	-	1641	Richmond	Avenue.pdf	Size:	608.1	kB

Site	1	Fire	Inspection	Report

Fire	Alarm	Report	(1).pdf

Filename:	Fire	Alarm	Report	(1).pdf	Size:	117.5	kB

School	Site	2

https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/rg/177630859/6348962409/certificate%20of%20occupancy%20-%201641%20Richmond%20Avenue.pdf
https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/rg/177630859/6371062406/Fire%20Alarm%20Report%20(1).pdf
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m2.	SCHOOL	SITES

Please	provide	information	on	Site	2	for	the	upcoming	school	year.

Physical
Address

Phone	Number District/CSD Grades	to	be
Served	at	Site
for	coming
year	(K-5,	6-9,
etc.)

Receives
Rental
Assistance	for
Which	Grades
(If	yes,	enter
the	appropriate
grades.	If	no,
enter	No).

Site	2 646	5th
Avenue 718-499-0957 NYC	CSD	15 K-8 No

m2a.	Please	provide	the	contact	information	for	Site	2.

Name Work	Phone Alternate	Phone Email	Address

School	Leader Christina	Tettonis 718-499-0957 718-499-0958 CTettonis@hccs-
nys.org

Operational	Leader Joy	Petrakos 718-499-0957 718-499-0958 Joy.Petrakos@hccs-
nys.org

Compliance
Contact Joy	Petrakos 718-499-0957 718-499-0958 Joy.Petrakos@hccs-

nys.org

Complaint	Contact Joy	Petrakos,
Natasha	Caban 718-499-0957 718-499-0958 Joy.Petrakos@hccs-

nys.org

DASA	Coordinator Anastasia	Etimos 718-499-0957 718-499-0958 AEtimos@hccs-
nys.org

Phone	Contact	for
After	Hours
Emergencies

Joy	Petrakos,
Natasha	Caban 917-561-2622 917-239-8303 joy.petrakos@hccs-

nys.org

mailto:CTettonis@hccs-nys.org
mailto:Joy.Petrakos@hccs-nys.org
mailto:Joy.Petrakos@hccs-nys.org
mailto:Joy.Petrakos@hccs-nys.org
mailto:AEtimos@hccs-nys.org
mailto:joy.petrakos@hccs-nys.org
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m2b.	Is	site	2	in	public	(co-located)	space	or	in	private	space?

Private	Space

IF	LOCATED	IN	PRIVATE	SPACE	IN	NYC	OR	IN	DISTRICTS	OUTSIDE	NYC

m2d.	Upload	a	current	Certificate	of	Occupancy	(COO)	and	the	annual	Fire	Inspection	Report

for	school	site	2	if	located	in	private	space	in	NYC	or	located	outside	of	NYC	.

Certificate	 of	 Occupancy	 and	 Fire	 Inspection.	 Provide	 a	 copy	 of	 a	 current	 and	 non-expired

certificate	of	occupancy	(if	outside	NYC	or	in	private	space	in	NYC).	For	schools	that	are	not	in

district	 space	 (NYC	 co-locations),	 provide	 a	 copy	 of	 a	 current	 and	 non-expired	 certificate	 of

occupancy,	and	a	copy	of	the	current	annual	fire	inspection	results,	which	should	be	dated	on

or	after	July	1,	2021.

Site	2	Certificate	of	Occupancy	(COO)

Certificate	of	Occupancy	12.27.18	Final	CO.pdf

Filename:	Certificate	of	Occupancy	12.27.18	Final	CO.pdf	Size:	35.8	kB

Site	2	Fire	Inspection	Report

Fire	Inspection	-	PS	2021.pdf

Filename:	Fire	Inspection	-	PS	2021.pdf	Size:	795.5	kB

CHARTER	REVISIONS	DURING	THE	2020-2021	SCHOOL	YEAR

n1.	Were	there	any	revisions	to	the	school’s	charter	during	the	2020-2021	school	year?	(Please

include	approved	or	pending	material	and	non-material	charter	revisions).

No

https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/rg/177630859/6348963805/Certificate%20of%20Occupancy%2012.27.18%20Final%20CO.pdf
https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/rg/177630859/6371064652/Fire%20Inspection%20-%20PS%202021.pdf
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o.	Has	your	school's	Board	of	Trustee's	approved	a	budget	for	the	2020-2021	FY?

Yes

ATTESTATIONS

p.	Individual	Primarily	Responsible	for	Submitting	the	Annual	Report.

Name Joy	Petrakos

Position Chief	of	Operations

Phone/Extension 718-499-0957-201

Email Joy.Petrakos@hccs-nys.org

p.	 Our	 signatures	 (Executive	 Director/School	 Leader/Head	 of	 School	 and	 Board	 President)

below	 attest	 that	 our	 school	 has	 reviewed,	 understands	 and	will	 comply	with	 the	 employee

clearance	and	 fingerprint	 requirements	as	outlined	 in	Entry	10	and	 found	 in	 the	NYSED	 CSO

Fingerprint	Clearance	Oct	2019	Memo.	Click	YES	to	agree.

Responses	Selected:

Yes

q.	 Our	 signatures	 (Executive	 Director/School	 Leader/Head	 of	 School	 and	 Board	 President)

below	attest	that	all	of	the	information	contained	herein	is	truthful	and	accurate	and	that	this

charter	school	 is	 in	compliance	with	all	aspects	of	 its	charter,	and	with	all	pertinent	Federal,

State,	and	local	laws,	regulations,	and	rules.	We	understand	that	if	any	information	in	any	part

of	this	report	is	found	to	have	been	deliberately	misrepresented,	that	will	constitute	grounds

for	the	revocation	of	our	charter.		Click	YES	to	agree	and	then	use	the	mouse	on	your	PC	or	the

stylus	on	your	mobile	device	to	sign	your	name).

Responses	Selected:

Yes

mailto:Joy.Petrakos@hccs-nys.org
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/aboutcharterschools/lawsandregs/EmployeeFingerprintOct19.pdf
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Signature,	Head	of	Charter	School

Signature,	President	of	the	Board	of	Trustees

Date

Jun	27	2021

Thank	you.

Entry	3	Progress	Toward	Goals
Completed	-	Nov	1	2021

Instructions	
Regents,	NYCDOE,	and	Buffalo	BOE-authorized	charter	schools

For	the	2020-2021	school	year,	any	academic	or
organization	goals	that	cannot	be	evaluated	due	to	school
closure	resulting	in	a	lack	of	data	and	changes	in	testing,
surveying,	and	other	usual	practices	should	be	reported	as
“N/A”.	Deadline	is	November	1,	2021.
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PLEASE	NOTE:	This	is	a	required	task,	and	it	is
marked	optional	for	administrative	purposes	only.
Entry	3	Progress	Toward	Goals
PROGRESS	TOWARD	CHARTER	GOALS

Board	of	Regents-authorized	and	NYCDOE-authorized	charter	schools	only.	

Complete	the	tables	provided.	List	each	goal	and	measure	as	contained	in	the	school’s	currently	approved
charter,	and	 indicate	whether	 the	school	has	met	or	not	met	 the	goal.	Please	provide	 information	 for	all
	goals	no	later	than	November	2,	2021.

1.	ACADEMIC	STUDENT	PERFORMANCE	GOALS

For	 the	2020-2021	 school	 year,	 any	academic	goals
that	 cannot	 be	 evaluated	 due	 to	 school	 closure
resulting	 in	 a	 lack	 of	 data	 and	 changes	 in	 testing,
surveying,	 and	 other	 usual	 practices	 should	 be
reported	as	“N/A”.

2020-2021	Progress	Toward	Attainment	of	Academic	Goals

Academic	Student
Performance	Goal

Measure	Used	to
Evaluate	Progress
Toward	Attainment
of	Goal

Goal	-	Met,	Not
Met	or	Unable	to
Assess

If	not	met,
describe	efforts
the	school	will	take
to	meet	goal.	If
unable	to	assess
goal,	type	N/A	for
Not	Applicable

We	were	able	to
reach	and	surpass
our	goal	in	all	but
one	of	the	strands
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Academic	Goal	1

75%	of
Kindergarten
students	who	were
enrolled	at	the
school	on	BEDS
day	will	perform	at
or	above	a	Level	1
on	rhyme
recognition,	rhyme
generation,
syllable	clapping,
initial	consonants
and	at	or	above	a
level	2	on	the	final
consonants,
blending,
segmenting,	ABC
recognition,
writing,	spelling
decoding	and	sight
word	strands.

Fox	in	the	Box
Early	Literacy
Assessment

Not	Met

in	our	assessment.
In	the	strand	of
Rhyme
Generation,	
71.2	%	of	our
Kindergarten
students	were
proficient.	In	order
for	us	to	reach	our
goal	in	Rhyme
Generation,	we	will
support	teachers
with	their	planning
and	encourage
them	to	allocate
more	instructional
time	to	teaching
onset	and	rime	to
increase	their
students'
phonemic
awareness	skills.
We	will	instruct
them	to	often
model	and
demonstrate	how
to	manipulate
words	and	sounds
so	that	students
become	aware	of
words	and	letter
patterns.	
Students	will	be
provided	ample
time	to	practice
through	word
family	activities,
games	and	other
hands	on
activities.	
The	Kindergarten
TA's	will	be	trained
in	these	activities
in	order	to	pull
small	groups	and
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work	with	students
that	need
additional	support
in	these	skills.
In	addition,	our	AIS
teacher	is	now	our
K-3	Dean	of
Instruction	and	she
will	support	the
Kindergarten
teams	with	this
work.

Academic	Goal	2

75%	of	the	1st
grade	students
who	were	enrolled
on	BEDS	day	for
two	consecutive
years	will	perform
at	or	above	Level	4
on	the	Spelling,
Decoding,
Vocabulary,	and
Sight	Words
strands.

Fox	in	the	Box
Early	Literacy
Assessment

Met

Academic	Goal	3

75%	of	the	2nd
grade	students
who	have	been
enrolled	at	the
school	on	BEDS
day	for	at	least
two	consecutive Fox	in	the	Box

Early	Literacy Not	Met

We	were	able	to
meet	our	goal	in
the	Vocabulary
(89.6%
proficient)and
Sight	Words
(82.7%	proficient)
strands	.	However,
62%	of	our	second
graders	were
proficient	in
Spelling	and	72.4%
of	our	second
graders	were
proficient	in
Decoding.	We	will
use	the	data	from
the	Early	Literary
Assessment	to
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years	will	perform
at	or	above	Level	6
on	the	Spelling,
Decoding,
Vocabulary,	and
Sight	Words
strands.

Assessment form	small	groups
and	address
differentiated
foundational	skills
within	those
groups	during
Reading	Workshop.
Additionally,	those
students	not
reaching
proficiency	levels
will	be	receiving
additional	support
from	our	ELA	AIS
teacher	targeted
to	their	specific
needs.

Academic	Goal	4

Each	year,	all
students	in	Grades
2-5	who	were
enrolled	in	the
school	for	at	least
two	consecutive
Beds	Dates	will
average	at	least
five	percentile
points	of	growth	on
NWEA	MAP
Reading	and	Math
Assessments	until
average	percentile
score	reaches	85.

NWEA Unable	to	Assess

Due	to	the	fact
that	we	were	not
able	to	assess
during	2019-2020
because	of	COVID,
we	do	not	have
any	comparable
data	to	measure
growth.

Academic	Goal	5

75%	of	all	students
in	grades	1-5	who
were	enrolled	in
the	school	for	at
least	two
consecutive	BEDS
dates	will	grow	a
minimum	of	2	level
as	measured	by

Fountas	and
Pinnell	Reading
Assessment

Met
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the	F&P
assessments
regardless	of
incoming	F&P
level.

Academic	Goal	6

75%	of	all	students
in	Grades	1
through	5	who
were	enrolled	in
the	school	for	at
least	two
consecutive	BEDS
dates,	including
students	with
disabilities,	ELLs
and	Economically
Disadvantaged
students	will
achieve	at	least
one	year
of	growth	on	NWEA
MAP

NWEA Unable	to	Assess

Academic	Goal	7

By	the	end	of	the
school	year,	75%
of	Kindergarteners
who	were	enrolled
on	BEDS	day	will
be	able	to
recognize	all	Greek
Letters	in	their
print	form	and
communicate
verbally

Greek	Letter
Recognition,
Writing	and	Verbal
Common
Assessment

Met

Academic	Goal	8

By	the	end	of	the
school	year,	75%
of	First	Graders
who	were	enrolled
on	BEDS	day	for	at
least	two
consecutive	years
will	be	able	to
write	all	the	Greek

Greek	Letter
Recognition,
Writing,	Listening
and	Verbal Met
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alphabet	in	print,
perform
proficiently	in
Listening,	perform
proficiently	in
Reading	and
communicate
verbally.

Common
Assessment

Academic	Goal	9

By	the	end	of	the
school	year,	75%
of	students	in
grades	2-5	who
were	enrolled	on
BEDS	day	for	at
least	two
consecutive	years
will	perform
proficiently	in	Oral,
Reading,	Listening
and	Writing	Skills.

Greek	Verbal,
Reading,	Listening
and	Writing
Common
Assessments

Met

Academic	Goal	10

2.	Do	have	more	academic	goals	to	add?

No

4.	ORGANIZATION	GOALS

For	 the	 2020-2021	 school	 year,	 any	 organization
goals	that	cannot	be	evaluated	due	to	school	closure
resulting	 in	 a	 lack	 of	 data	 and	 changes	 in	 testing,
surveying,	 and	 other	 usual	 practices	 should	 be
reported	as	“N/A”.

2020-2021	Progress	Toward	Attainment	of	Organization	Goals

Organizational
Goal

Measure	Used	to
Evaluate	Progress

Goal	-	Met,	Not
Met,	or	Unable	to

If	not	met,
describe	efforts
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Assess the	school	will	take
to	meet	goal.	If
unable	to	assess
goal,	type	N/A	for
Not	Applicable

Org	Goal	1

Recruitment	–	Each
year,	HCCS-SI	will
meet	or	exceed
enrollment	and
retention	targets
as	prescribed	by
the	Board	of
Regents,	through
the	State
Education
Department,	of
students	with
disabilities,	English
language	learners,
and	students	who
are	eligible	for	the

ATS,	Vendor	Portal,
Internal	Systems Partially	Met

HCCS-SI	completed
its	second	year
with	three
Kindergarten
classes,	two	first
grade	classes	and
two	second	grade
classes	and	is	fully
enrolled	for
September	2021
with	three	classes
in	K	and	1.	There
will	be	two	classes
in	grades	2	&	3.
Although	our
Special	Education
percentage	is
currently	lower
than	school	district
31,	we	accepted
17	students	with
IEP's	for
September	2021
which	will	increase
our	SWD	percent
significantly	at
14%.	We
registered	10
English	Language
Learners	for
September	2021
which	will	increase
our	numbers	to
7.2%	just	above
District	31's
percent	(6%).	To
achieve	a	greater
percentage	with
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free-	and	reduced-
price	lunch
program.

our	subgroups	we
will	continue	to
reach	out	to
preschools	and
day	cares
throughout	the
neighborhoods	of
D31	to	create
awareness	of	our
new	school.	We
will	continue	to
hold	bi-weekly
open	house	events
and	distribute
information	about
our	school	in
multiple
languages.	Our
lottery	includes
preferences	for
SWD	and	ELL
students.	Our	FRPL
percent	is	54%
which	is	even	with
D31.

Org	Goal	2

At	the	end	of	each
school	year,	HCCS-
SI	will	have	an
average	daily
student
attendance	rate	of
at	least	95%.

ATS

HCCS-SI's	daily
average
attendance	is	97.2

Met

Org	Goal	3

Each	year,	95%	of
all	students
enrolled	at	HCCS-
SI	during	the	last
day	of	the	school
year	will	return	the
following
September,	not
including	those
who	move	out	of
area.

ATS	and	Vendor
Portal Met
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Org	Goal	4

Each	year,	parents
will	express
satisfaction	with
HCCS-SI’s
program,	based	on
the	NYCDOE
Learning
Environment
Survey	in	which
the	school	will
receive	scores	of
7.5	or	higher	in
each	of	the	four
survey	domains:
Academic
Expectations,
Communication,
Engagement,	and
Safety	and
Respect.	The
school	will	only
have	met	this	goal
if	at	least	50%	of
the	parents
participate	in	the
survey.

NYCDOE	Survey
98.3%	of	our
parents	completed
the	survey.

Met

Org	Goal	5

Each	year,
teachers	will
express
satisfaction	with
HCCS’	leadership
and	professional
development
opportunities,
based	on	the
NYCDOE	Learning
Environment
Survey	in	which
the	school	will
receive	scores	of
7.5	or	higher	in
each	of	the	four
survey	domains:

NYC	DOE
Survey.100%
teacher
particiation.

Met
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Academic
Expectations,
Communication,
Engagement,	and
Safety	and
Respect.	The
school	will	only
have	met	this	goal
if	at	least	50%	of
the	teachers
participate	in	the
survey.

Org	Goal	6

Each	year,	HCCS
will	comply	with	all
applicable	laws,
rules,	regulations,
and	contract	terms
including,	but	not
limited	to,	the	New
York	Charter
Schools	Act,	the
New	York	Freedom
of	Information	Law,
the	New	York	Open
Meetings	Law,	the
federal	Individuals
with	Disabilities
Education	Act,	and
federal	Family
Educational	Rights
and	Privacy	Act.

Approved	Board	of
Regents	Charter;
Applicable	law,
rules	and
regulations;	NY
Charter	Schools
Act;	NY	Freedom
Information	Law;
NY	Open	Meetings
Law;	Federal
Individuals	with
Disabilities
Education	Act;
Family	Educational
Rights	and	Privacy
Act.

Met

Org	Goal	7

Each	year,	the
HCCS	Principal	will
achieve	ratings	of
Proficient	or
Distinguished,	and
an	average
percentile	score	of
85%	or	higher,
using	the	VAL-ED
leadership
evaluation	system,
developed	at

Val-ED	Leadership
Evaluation
Program	HCCS-SI
Principal's	overall
effectiveness	score
is	4.79.	The
performance	level
is	Distinguished
and	the	percentile
rank	is	99.4%

Met
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Vanderbilt
University.

Org	Goal	8

Org	Goal	9

Org	Goal	10

Org	Goal	11

Org	Goal	12

Org	Goal	13

Org	Goal	14

Org	Goal	15

Org	Goal	16

Org	Goal	17

Org	Goal	18

Org	Goal	19

Org	Goal	20

5.	Do	have	more	organizational	goals	to	add?

No

6.	FINANCIAL	GOALS



24	/	44

2020-2021	Progress	Toward	Attainment	of	Financial	Goals

Financial	Goals Measure	Used	to
Evaluate	Progress

Goal	-	Met,	Not
Met,	or	Partially
Met

If	not	met,
describe	efforts
the	school	will	take
to	meet	goal.

Financial	Goal	1

Each	year,	HCCS
will	undergo	an
independent
financial	audit	that
will	result	in	an
unqualified	opinion
and	no	major
findings.

External	Audit	by
PKF
O'Connor	Davies,
LLP

Met

Financial	Goal	2

Each	year,	HCCS
will	operate	on	a
balanced	budget
and	maintain	a
stable	cash	flow.

Monthly	internal
financial
statements
and	annual
external
audit	by	PKF
O'Connor	Davies

Met

Financial	Goal	3

Financial	Goal	4

Financial	Goal	5

7.	Do	have	more	financial	goals	to	add?

No

Thank	you.

Entry	4	-	Audited	Financial	Statements
Completed	-	Oct	31	2021

Required	of	ALL	Charter	Schools

ALL	SUNY-authorized	charter	schools	must	upload	the	financial	statements	in	.pdf	format	into	the
SUNY	Epicenter	system	no	later	than	November	1,	2021.	SUNY	CSI	will	forward	to	NYSED	CSO.
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ALL	Regents,	NYCDOE,	and	Buffalo	BOE	authorized	charter	schools	must	upload	final,	audited
financial	statements	to	the	Annual	Report	Portal	no	later	than	November	1,	2021.	Upload	the
independent	auditor’s	report,	any	advisory	and/or	management	letter,	and	the	internal	controls	report	as
one	submission,	combined	into	a	.PDF	file,	ensuring	that	security	features	such	as	password	protection
are	turned	off.

PLEASE	NOTE:	This	is	a	required	task,	and	it	is	marked	optional	for	administrative	purposes
only.

2021	Hellenic	Classical	Charter	School	Audit	Report

Filename:	2021_Hellenic_Classical_Charter_Sch_8u8oB0q.pdf	Size:	610.3	kB

Entry	4b	–	Audited	Financial	Report	Template	(BOR/NYC/BOE)
Completed	-	Nov	1	2021

Instructions	-	Regents-Authorized	Charter	Schools	ONLY

Regents-authorized	schools	must	download	and	complete	the	Excel	spreadsheet	entitled	“Audited
Financial	Report	Template”	from	the	online	portal	or	the	website	at	2020-2021	Charter	School	Annual
Report	webpage.		Upload	the	completed	file	in	Excel	format.	Due	November	1,	2021.

Education	Corporations	with	more	than	one	school	should	complete	the	Excel	spreadsheet	for
the	Education	Corporation	as	a	whole,	not	for	the	individual	schools.		Please	submit	the	same
Excel	spreadsheet	for	each	of	the	schools.

PLEASE	NOTE:	This	is	a	required	task,	and	it	is	marked	optional	for	administrative	purposes
only.

auditedfinancialreporttemplate-nysed	SI	FY21

Filename:	auditedfinancialreporttemplate-nys_33jX7bX.xlsx	Size:	87.8	kB

Entry	4c	–	Additional	Financial	Documents
Completed	-	Nov	1	2021

Instructions	-	Regents,	NYCDOE	and	Buffalo	BOE	authorized	schools	must	upload	financial
documents	in	this	section	by	November	1,	2021.	The	items	listed	below	should	be	uploaded,	with	an
explanation	if	not	applicable	or	available.	For	example,	a	“federal	Single	Audit	was	not	required	because
the	school	did	not	expend	federal	funds	of	more	than	the	$750,000	Threshold.”

1.	 Advisory	and/or	Management	letter
2.	 Federal	Single	Audit
3.	 CSP	Agreed-Upon	Procedure	Report
4.	 Evidence	of	Required	Escrow	Account	for	each	school[1]
5.	 Corrective	Action	Plan	for	Audit	Findings	and	Management	Letter	Recommendations

[1]	Note:	For	BOR	schools	chartered	or	renewed	after	the	2017-2018	school	year,	the	escrow	account	per
school	is	$100,000.	

PLEASE	NOTE:	This	is	a	required	task,	and	it	is	marked	optional	for	administrative	purposes
only.

https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/prog/20-21_annual_report
https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/151101498/23540283/2021_Hellenic_Classical_Charter_Sch_8u8oB0q.pdf
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/annualreport/2020-21/2021AnnualReport.html
https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/151101500/23545888/auditedfinancialreporttemplate-nys_33jX7bX.xlsx
file:///tmp/tmph2sd_nbr.html#_ftn1
file:///tmp/tmph2sd_nbr.html#_ftnref1
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June	2021

Filename:	June_2021.pdf	Size:	171.8	kB

2021	Hellenic	Classical	Charter	School	Mgmt	Ltr

Filename:	2021_Hellenic_Classical_Charter_Sch_PRW9csr.pdf	Size:	150.3	kB

HCCS	Annual	Report	4C

Filename:	HCCS_Annual_Report_4C_7U171tr.docx	Size:	2.2	MB

Entry	4d	-	Financial	Services	Contact	Information
Completed	-	Aug	2	2021

Instructions:	Please	enter	the	contact	information	for	school	staff,	firms	or	other	entities	providing
financial	services	to	the	education	corporation	by	November	1,	2021.

Form	for	"Financial	Services	Contact	Information"

					

1.	School	Based	Fiscal	Contact	Information

School	Based	Fiscal
Contact	Name

School	Based	Fiscal
Contact	Email

School	Based	Fiscal
Contact	Phone

Christina	Portelos cportelos@hccs-nys.org 718-499-0957

2.	Audit	Firm	Contact	Information

School	Audit
Contact	Name

School	Audit
Contact	Email

School	Audit
Contact	Phone

Years	Working	With
This	Audit	Firm

Gus	Saliba gsaliba@pkfod.co
m 201-712-9800 3

https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/151101501/22773295/June_2021.pdf
https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/151101501/23540284/2021_Hellenic_Classical_Charter_Sch_PRW9csr.pdf
https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/151101501/23550337/HCCS_Annual_Report_4C_7U171tr.docx
mailto:cportelos@hccs-nys.org
mailto:gsaliba@pkfod.com


27	/	44

3.	If	applicable,	please	provide	contact	information	for	the	school's	outsourced	financial

services	firm.

Firm	Name Contact
Person

Mailing
Address

Email Phone Years	With
Firm

Kiwi	Partners Ken	Hafner

237	W	35th
Street,	New
York,	NY
10001

khafner@kiw
ipartners.co
m

212-532-
7171 5

Entry	5	–	Fiscal	Year	2021-2022	Budget
Completed	-	Oct	28	2021

Instructions	-	Regents,	NYCDOE,	and	Buffalo	BOE	authorized	charter	schools	should	upload	a
copy	of	the	school’s	FY21	Budget	using	the	2021-2022	Projected	Annual	Budget	template	in	the	portal	or
from	the	Annual	Report	website	by	November	1,	2021.

The	assumptions	column	should	be	completed	for	all	revenue	and	expense	items	unless	the	item	is	self-
explanatory.	Where	applicable,	reference	the	page	number	or	section	in	the	application	narrative	that
indicates	the	assumption	being	made.	For	instance,	student	enrollment	would	reference	the	applicable
page	number	in	Section	I,	C	of	the	application	narrative.

Instructions	-	SUNY	authorized	charter	schools	should	download	the	2021-2022	Budget	and
Quarterly	Report	Template	on	the	SUNY	website	or	Epicenter	and	upload	the	completed	template	into	the
portal	by	November	1,	2021.	

PLEASE	NOTE:	This	is	a	required	task,	and	it	is	marked	optional	for	administrative	purposes
only.

final2021-2022arbudgettemplate	SI

Filename:	final2021-2022arbudgettemplate_SI.xlsx	Size:	38.7	kB

Entry	6	–	Board	of	Trustees	Disclosure	of	Financial	Interest
Form
Completed	-	Aug	2	2021

Required	of	ALL	Charter	Schools	by	August	2

Each	member	of	the	charter	school’s	Board	of	Trustees	who	served	on	a	charter	school	education
corporation	governing	one	or	more	charter	schools	for	any	period	during	the	2020-2021	school	year	must
complete	a	signed:

Regents,	NYCDOE,	and	Buffalo	BOE	Authorized	Schools:Disclosure	of	Financial	Interest	Form
SUNY-	Authorized	Charter	Schools:	SUNY	Trustee	Financial	Disclosure	Form

All	completed	forms	must	be	collected	and	uploaded	in	.PDF	format	for	each	individual	member.	If	a
trustee	is	not	able	or	available	to	complete	the	form	by	the	deadline,	the	education	corporation
is	responsible	for	doing	so	on	behalf	of	the	trustee.	(Forms	completed	from	past	years	will	not	be

mailto:khafner@kiwipartners.com
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/annualreport/2020-21/2021AnnualReport.html
http://www.newyorkcharters.org/fiscal/
https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/151101503/23512773/final2021-2022arbudgettemplate_SI.xlsx
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/annualreport/2019-20/AnnualReport1920.html
https://www.newyorkcharters.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/05/2021-SUNY-Financial-Disclosure-Form-1.pdf
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accepted).

Trustees	serving	on	an	education	corporation	that	governs	more	than	one	school	are	not	required	to
complete	a	separate	disclosure	for	each	school	governed	by	the	education	corporation.	In	the	Disclosure
of	Financial	Interest	Form,	trustees	must	disclose	information	relevant	to	any	of	the	schools	served	by	the
governing	education	corporation.	Note:	Docusign	is	accepted.

FinancialDisclosure2021	-	Capetanakis

Filename:	FinancialDisclosure2021_-_Capetanakis.pdf	Size:	131.0	kB

FinancialDisclosure2021	-	Lekas

Filename:	FinancialDisclosure2021_-_Lekas.pdf	Size:	425.0	kB

FinancialDisclosure2021	-	Newman

Filename:	FinancialDisclosure2021_-_Newman.pdf	Size:	92.5	kB

FinancialDisclosure2021	-	Rajpersaud

Filename:	FinancialDisclosure2021_-_Rajpersaud.pdf	Size:	187.5	kB

FinancialDisclosure2021	-	Svokos

Filename:	FinancialDisclosure2021_-_Svokos.pdf	Size:	178.0	kB

FinancialDisclosure2021	-	Theodoratou

Filename:	FinancialDisclosure2021_-_Theodoratou.pdf	Size:	198.3	kB

FinancialDisclosure2021	-	Leonardos

Filename:	FinancialDisclosure2021_-_Leonardos.pdf	Size:	116.8	kB

FinancialDisclosure2021	-	Mathews

Filename:	FinancialDisclosure2021_-_Mathews.pdf	Size:	2.9	MB

FinancialDisclosure2021	-	Angelakos

Filename:	FinancialDisclosure2021_-_Angelakos_RjwuhUK.pdf	Size:	94.3	kB

Entry	7	BOT	Membership	Table
Completed	-	Aug	2	2021

Instructions
Required	of	All	charter	schools
ALL	charter	 schools	or	 education	corporations	governing	multiple	 schools	must	 complete	 the	Board	of
Trustees	Membership	Table	within	the	online	portal.	Please	be	sure	to	include	and	identify	parents	who
are	members	of	the	Board	of	Trustees	and	indicate	whether	parents	are	voting	or	non-voting	members.

https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/151101504/22773322/FinancialDisclosure2021_-_Capetanakis.pdf
https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/151101504/22773323/FinancialDisclosure2021_-_Lekas.pdf
https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/151101504/22773324/FinancialDisclosure2021_-_Newman.pdf
https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/151101504/22773325/FinancialDisclosure2021_-_Rajpersaud.pdf
https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/151101504/22773326/FinancialDisclosure2021_-_Svokos.pdf
https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/151101504/22773327/FinancialDisclosure2021_-_Theodoratou.pdf
https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/151101504/22773350/FinancialDisclosure2021_-_Leonardos.pdf
https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/151101504/22773359/FinancialDisclosure2021_-_Mathews.pdf
https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/151101504/22901023/FinancialDisclosure2021_-_Angelakos_RjwuhUK.pdf
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Entry	7	BOT	Table

1.	 SUNY-AUTHORIZED	charter	schools	are	required	to	provide	information	for	VOTING	Trustees	only.		
2.	 REGENTS,	NYCDOE,	and	BUFFALO	BOE-AUTHORIZED	charter	schools	are	required	to	provide

information	for	all	--VOTING	and	NON-VOTING--	trustees.

	

1.	2020-2021	Board	Member	Information	(Enter	info	for	each	BOT	member)

Trustee
Name

Trustee
Email
Address

Position
on	the
Board

Commit
tee
Affiliatio
ns

Voting
Member
Per	By-
Laws
(Y/N)

Number
of	Terms
Served

Start
Date	of
Current
Term
(MM/DD
/YYYY)

End
Date	of
Current
Term
(MM/DD
/YYYY)

Board
Meeting
s
Attende
d
During
2020-
2021

1

Charles
Capetan
a
kis

cc@dhcl
e
gal.com

Chair

Educati
o
n,
Financia
l,
Facilities

Yes 2 07/01/2
020

06/30/2
023 12

2
Harvey
Newma
n

hnewma
n@thec
ei
-pea.org

Secretar
y

Educati
o
n	Chair

Yes 2 07/01/2
020

06/30/2
023 9

3
Nick
Leonard
o
s

NickL@
d
afnonas.
c
om

Treasure
r

Financia
l,
Facilities

Yes 2 07/01/2
020

06/30/2
023 12

Effie

Effieleka
s Trustee/ Educati 07/01/2 06/30/2

http://gal.com/
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4 Lekas @hotma
il
.com

Member o
n

Yes 2 020 023 12

5 Grazia
Svokos

grsvoko
s
@gmail.
c
om

Trustee/
Member

Educati
o
n

Yes 2 07/01/2
020

06/30/2
023 10

6

Nikiforo
s
Mathew
s

Nmathe
w
s@orric
k.com

Trustee/
Member

Financia
l,
Facilities

Yes 2 07/01/2
020

06/30/2
023 5	or	less

7

Dean
Angelak
o
s

Dangela
k
os@cha
c
ompani
es
.com

Trustee/
Member

Financia
l,
Facilities

Yes 2 07/01/2
020

06/30/2
023 5	or	less

8

Dr.
Liana
Theodor
a
tou

hlt1@ny
u
.edu

Trustee/
Member

Educati
o
n

Yes 2 07/01/2
020

06/30/2
023 7

9
Bianca
Rajpers
aud

br@dhcl
egal.co
m

Trustee/
Member

Financia
l Yes 2 07/01/2

020
06/30/2
023 11

1a.	Are	there	more	than	9	members	of	the	Board	of	Trustees?

No

mailto:s@orrick.com
mailto:br@dhclegal.com
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2.	INFORMATION	ABOUT	MEMBERS	OF	THE	BOARD	OF	TRUSTEES

1.	 SUNY-AUTHORIZED	charter	schools	provide	response	relative	to	VOTING	Trustees	only.		
2.	 REGENTS,	NYCDOE,	and	BUFFALO	BOE-AUTHORIZED	charter	schools	provide	a	response	relative	to

all	trustees.	

a.	Total	Number	of	BOT	Members	on	June	30,	2021 9

b.Total	Number	of	Members	Added	During	2020-
2021

0

c.	Total	Number	of	Members	who	Departed	during
2020-2021

0

d.Total	Number	of	members,	as	set	in	Bylaws,
Resolution	or	Minutes

9

3.	Number	of	Board	meetings	held	during	2020-2021

12

4.	Number	of	Board	meetings	scheduled	for	2021-2022

12

Thank	you.

Entry	8	Board	Meeting	Minutes
Completed	-	Aug	2	2021

Instructions	-	Required	of	Regents,	NYCDOE,	and	Buffalo	BOE	Authorized	Schools	ONLY	

Schools	 must	 upload	 a	 complete	 set	 of	 monthly	 board	 meeting	 minutes	 (July	 2020-June	 2021),	 which
should	match	the	number	of	meetings	held	during	the	2020-2021	school	year,	as	indicated	in	the	above
table.	The	minutes	provided	must	be	 the	 final	 version	approved	by	 the	 school’s	Board	of	Trustees	and
may	be	uploaded	individually	or	as	one	single	combined	file.	Board	meeting	minutes	must	be	submitted
by	August	2,	2021.
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2021-0629	SCHOOL	BOARD	MINUTES

Filename:	2021-0629_SCHOOL_BOARD_MINUTES_s2RVQOp.pdf	Size:	237.0	kB

HCCS	Minutes	-	July	2020	-	May	2021

Filename:	HCCS_Minutes_-_July_2020_-_May_2021_Sp5vPhR.pdf	Size:	2.1	MB

Entry	9	Enrollment	&	Retention
Completed	-	Aug	2	2021

Instructions	for	submitting	Enrollment	and	Retention	Efforts
ALL	charter	schools	must	complete	this	section.	Describe	the	good
faith	efforts	the	charter	school	has	made	in	2020-2021	toward	meeting
targets	to	attract	and	retain	the	enrollment	of	Students	with	Disabilities
(SWDs),	English	Language	Learners	(ELLs),	and	students	who	are
economically	disadvantaged.	In	addition,	describe	the	school’s	plans	for
meeting	or	making	progress	toward	meeting	its	enrollment	and	retention
targets	in	2021-2022.	

Entry	9	Enrollment	and	Retention	of	Special
Populations
Instructions	for	Reporting	Enrollment	and	Retention	Strategies
Describe	the	efforts	the	charter	school	has	made	in	2020-2021	toward
meeting	targets	to	attract	and	retain	enrollment	of	students	with	disabilities,
English	language	learners,	and	students	who	are	economically
disadvantaged.	In	addition,	describe	the	school’s	plans	for	meeting	or
making	progress	toward	meeting	its	enrollment	and	retention	targets	in
2021-2022.

	

Recruitment/Attraction	Efforts	Toward	Meeting	Targets

Describe	Recruitment	Efforts	in
2020-2021

Describe	Recruitment	Plans	in
2021-2022

Students	who	are	economically
disadvantaged	are	supported	by
reaching	out	to	the	parents	and
providing	them	with	any

https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/151101506/22870003/2021-0629_SCHOOL_BOARD_MINUTES_s2RVQOp.pdf
https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/151101506/22870006/HCCS_Minutes_-_July_2020_-_May_2021_Sp5vPhR.pdf
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Economically	Disadvantaged

materials	and	tools	they	need	to
support	their	learning.	Teaching
assistants	help	those	students
with	their	homework
assignments	and	work	with	them
often	during	Independent	work
time.	They	are	also	included	in
small	groups	more	often	than
other	students	to	ensure	they
receive	the	support	they	need.
The	guidance	counselor	also
plays	a	major	role	in	reaching	out
to	the	families	to	address
attendance	issues	and	other
issues	that	may	contribute	to	the
lack	of	completing	assignments.
The	guidance	counselor	also
supports	the	students	with	their
social	emotional	health	during
scheduled	sessions	with	them.

HCCS-SI	will	continue	to
demonstrate	strong	recruitment
efforts	for	Economically
Disadvantaged	Students	in	the
2021-2022	school	year.

English	Language	Learners

Similar	to	our	strategy	for
recruiting	SWDs,	we	are	reaching
out	to	pre-school	programs	with
large	communities	of	English
language	learners	(ELLs).	We	will
advertise	the	school	in	local
Spanish-language	and	Asian
media	(e.g.	newspaper),	host
targeted	informational	sessions
for	non-English	speaking
students	in	their	native
languages,	and	provide
recruitment	materials	in	multiple
languages	(i.e.	brochures,
handouts,	website)	that	highlight
unique	services	offered	for	ELL
students.

HCCS-SI	will	continue	to
demonstrate	strong	recruitment
efforts	for	English	Language
Learners	in	the	2021-2022	school
year.

HCCS-SI	completed	its	second
year	with	grades	K-2	and	will	add
a	grade	each	year	following	until
we	reach	K-8.	Based	on	this
growth	strategy,	we	are	begun
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Students	with	Disabilities

our	student	recruitment	process
by	reaching	out	to	daycares	and
Pre-K	programs	in	school	district
31.	As	part	of	this	process,
targed	pre-school	programs	that
only	serve	students	with
disabilities	(SWDs).	Our	goal	is	to
engage	parents	of	these
students,	encourage	them	to
apply	to	the	admissions	lottery
and	then,	for	those	who	gain
entry,	work	with	the	parents	and
the	Pre-K	providers	to	help	these
students	transition	into	our
school.	More	broadly,	we	use
marketing	strategies	that
encourage	applicants	with
disabilities	to	apply,	including:
special	marketing	materials
aimed	at	students	with
disabilities;	emphasizing	the
school's	range	of	services	and
accommodations,	and;	outreach
to	the	CSD	31’s	Committee	on
Special	Education	(CSE)	and
Community	Education	Council
(CEC).

HCCS-SI	will	continue	to
demonstrate	strong	recruitment
efforts	for	Students	with
Disabilities	in	the	2021-2022
school	year.

Retention	Efforts	Toward	Meeting	Targets

Describe	Retention	Efforts	in
2020-2021

Describe	Retention	Plans	in
2021-2022

Economically	Disadvantaged

HCCS-SI	will	continue	to	support
students	who	are	economically
disadvantaged	by	reaching	out	to
the	families	and	providing	them
with	additional	support
throughout	the	year.

HCCS-SI	will	continue	to
demonstrate	strong	retention
efforts	for	Economically
Disadvantaged	Students	in	the
2021-2022	school	year.

Our	special	education
percentage	is	16%	and	our	ELL
percentage	is	7%.	Our	subgroup
enrollment	is	1.2%	above	School
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English	Language	Learners

District	31.	To	achieve	a	greater
percentage	with	our	subgroups
we	will	continue	to	reach	out	to
pre-schools	and	day	cares
throughout	all	neighborhoods	in
District	31	to	make	parents
aware	of	the	option	of	applying
to	our	school,	distributing
information	about	the	school	in
multiple	languages,	and	holding
a	virtual	open	house	for	District
31	on	our	website.	Our	lottery
includes	preferences	for	special
education	and	ELL	students.

HCCS-SI	will	continue	to
demonstrate	strong	retention
efforts	for	English	Language
Learners	in	the	2021-2022	school
year.

Students	with	Disabilities

Our	special	education
percentage	is	16%.	Our	subgroup
enrollment	is	currently	lower
than	District	31.	To	achieve	a
greater	percentage	with	our
subgroups	we	will	continue	to
reach	out	to	pre-schools	and	day
cares	throughout	all
neighborhoods	in	District	31	to
make	parents	aware	of	the
option	of	applying	to	our	school,
distributing	information	about
the	school	in	multiple	languages,
and	holding	a	virtual	open	house
for	District	31	on	our	website.
Our	lottery	includes	preferences
for	special	education	and	ELL
students.

HCCS-SI	will	continue	to
demonstrate	strong	retention
efforts	for	Students	with
Disabilities	in	the	2021-2022
school	year.

Entry	10	–	Teacher	and	Administrator	Attrition
Completed	-	Aug	2	2021

Form	for	"Entry	10	–	Teacher	and	Administrator
Attrition"	Revised	to	Employee	Fingerprint
Requirements	Attestation
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A.	TEACH	System	–	Employee	Clearance

Charter	schools	must	ensure	that	all	prospective	employees[1]	receive	clearance	through	the	NYSED	Office
of	School	Personnel	Review	and	Accountability	(OSPRA)	prior	to	employment.	This	includes

paraprofessionals	and	other	school	personnel	that	are	provided	or	assigned	by	the	district	of

location,	or	related/contracted	service	providers.	After	an	employee	has	been	cleared,	schools	are
required	to	maintain	proof	of	such	clearance	in	the	file	of	each	employee.	For	the	safety	of	all	students,
charter	schools	must	take	immediate	steps	to	terminate	the	employment	of	individuals	who	have	been
denied	clearance.	Once	the	employees	have	been	terminated,	the	school	must	terminate	the	request	for
clearance	in	the	TEACH	system.

In	the	Annual	Report,	charter	schools	are	asked	to	confirm	that	all	employees	have	been	cleared	through
the	NYSED	TEACH	system;	and,	if	denied	clearance,	confirm	that	the	individual	or	employee	has	been
removed	from	the	TEACH	system,	and	is	not	employed	by	the	school.

[1]	Employees	that	must	be	cleared	include,	but	are	not	limited	to,	teachers,	administrative	staff,	janitors,
security	personnel	and	cafeteria	workers,	and	other	staff	who	are	present	when	children	are	in	the	school
building.	This	includes	paraprofessionals	and	other	school	personnel	that	are	provided	or

assigned	by	the	district	of	location,	as	well	as	related/contracted	service	providers.	See	NYSED
memorandum	dated	October	1,	2019	at
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/aboutcharterschools/lawsandregs/EmployeeFingerprintOct19.pdf		or	visit	the
NYSED	website	at:	http://www.highered.nysed.gov/tsei/ospra/fingerprintingcharts.html	for	more	information
regarding	who	must	be	fingerprinted.	Also	see,	8	NYCRR	§87.2.

file:///tmp/tmph2sd_nbr.html#_ftn1
http://www.highered.nysed.gov/tsei/ospra/
file:///tmp/tmph2sd_nbr.html#_ftnref1
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/aboutcharterschools/lawsandregs/EmployeeFingerprintOct19.pdf
http://www.highered.nysed.gov/tsei/ospra/fingerprintingcharts.html
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B.	Emergency	Conditional	Clearances

Charter	schools	are	strongly	discouraged	from	using	the	emergency	conditional	clearance	provisions	for
prospective	employees.	This	is	because	the	school	must	simultaneously	request	clearance	through	NYSED
TEACH,	and	the	school’s	emergency	conditional	clearance	of	the	employee	terminates	automatically	once
the	school	receives	notification	from	NYSED	regarding	the	clearance	request.	Status	notification	is	provided
for	all	prospective	employees	through	the	NYSED	TEACH	portal	within	48	hours	after	the	clearance	request
is	submitted.	Therefore,	at	most,	a	school’s	emergency	conditional	clearance	will	be	valid	for	only	48	hours
after	approval	by	the	board.

Schools	are	not	permitted	to	renew	or	in	any	way	re-establish	a	prospective	employee’s	emergency
conditional	clearance	after	status	notification	is	sent	by	NYSED	through	the	TEACH	portal.

Schools	are	asked	to	attest	that	they	have	reviewed	and	understand	these	requirements.	More	information
can	be	found	in	the	memo	at
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/aboutcharterschools/lawsandregs/EmployeeFingerprintOct19.pdf.

Attestation

Responses	Selected:

I	hereby	attest	that	the	school	has	reviewed,	understands,	and	will	comply	with	these	requirements.

Entry	11	Percent	of	Uncertified	Teachers
Completed	-	Aug	2	2021

Instructions

Required	of	Regents,	NYCDOE,	and	Buffalo	BOE	Authorized	Charter	Schools	ONLY	

The	table	below	reflects	the	information	collected	through	the	online	portal	for	compliance	with	New
York	State	Education	Law	2854(3)(a-1)	for	teaching	staff	qualifications.		Uncertified	teachers	are	those
not	certified	pursuant	to	the	State	Certification	Requirements	established	by	the	NYSED	Commissioner	of
Education.	

Enter	the	relevant	full-time	equivalent	(FTE)	count	of	teachers	in	each	column.		For	example,	a	school
with	20	full-time	teachers	and	5	half-time	teachers	would	have	an	FTE	count	of	22.5.	

Entry	11	Uncertified	Teachers
School	Name:						

Instructions	for	Reporting	Percent	of	Uncertified

http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/aboutcharterschools/lawsandregs/EmployeeFingerprintOct19.pdf
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Instructions	for	Reporting	Percent	of	Uncertified
Teachers
Required	of	Regents,	NYCDOE,	and	Buffalo	BOE	Authorized	Charter	Schools	

The	 table	 below	 reflects	 the	 information	 collected	 through	 the	 online	 portal	 for	 compliance

with	New	York	State	Education	Law	2854(3)(a-1)	 for	teaching	staff	qualifications.	Uncertified

teachers	are	those	not	certified	pursuant	to	the	State	Certification	Requirements	established

by	the	NYSED	Commissioner	of	Education.	Enter	the	relevant	full-time	equivalent	(FTE)	count

of	teachers	 in	each	column.	For	example,	a	school	with	20	full-time	teachers	and	5	half-time

teachers	would	have	an	FTE	count	of	22.5.

If	more	than	one	line	applies	to	a	teacher,	please	include	in	only	one	FTE	uncertified	category.	Please	do
not	include	paraprofessionals,	such	as	teacher	aides.

CATEGORY	A.	30%	OR	5	UNCERTIFIED	TEACHERS	WHICHEVER	IS	LESS

FTE	Count

i.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teacher	with	at	least
three	years	of	elementary,	middle	or	secondary
classroom	teaching	experience	(as	of	June	30,
2021)

4

ii.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	who	are
tenured	or	tenure	track	college	faculty	(as	of	June
30,	2021)

0

iii.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	with	two	years
of	Teach	for	America	experience	(as	of	June	30,
2021)

0

iv.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	with
exceptional	business,	professional,	artistic,
athletic,	or	military	experience	(as	June	30,	2021)

0

Total	Category	A:	5	or	30%	whichever	is	less 4.0
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CATEGORY	B.	PLUS	FIVE	UNCERTIFIED	TEACHERS	IN	MATHEMATICS,	SCIENCE,	COMPUTER

SCIENCE,	TECHNOLOGY	OR	CAREER	AND	TECHNICAL	EDUCATION.

FTE	Count

i.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teacher	with	at	least
three	years	of	elementary,	middle	or	secondary
classroom	teaching	experience	(as	of	June	30,
2021)

0

ii.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	who	are
tenured	or	tenure	track	college	faculty	(as	of	June
30,	2021)

0

iii.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	with	two	years
of	Teach	for	America	experience	(as	of	June	30,
2021)

0

iv.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	with
exceptional	business,	professional,	artistic,
athletic,	or	military	experience	(as	June	30,	2021)

0

Total	Category	B:	not	to	exceed	5 0.0
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CATEGORY	C:	PLUS	5	ADDITIONAL	UNCERTIFIED	TEACHERS

FTE	Count

i.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teacher	with	at	least
three	years	of	elementary,	middle	or	secondary
classroom	teaching	experience	(as	of	June	30,
2021)

0

ii.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	who	are
tenured	or	tenure	track	college	faculty	(as	of	June
30,	2021)

0

iii.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	with	two	years
of	Teach	for	America	experience	(as	of	June	30,
2021)

0

iv.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	with
exceptional	business,	professional,	artistic,
athletic,	or	military	experience	(as	June	30,	2021)

0

Total	Category	C:	not	to	exceed	5 0.0

CATEGORY	D:	TOTAL	FTE	COUNT	OF	UNCATEGORIZED,	UNCERTIFIED	TEACHERS

(Include	teachers	who	do	not	fit	in	one	of	these	categories	or	if	did	fit	would	exceed	the	numerical	limits	for
that	category)

FTE	Count

Total	Category	D 0

CATEGORY	E:	TOTAL	FTE	COUNT	OF	CERTIFIED	TEACHERS

FTE	Count

Total	Category	E 12
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CATEGORY	F:	TOTAL	FTE	COUNT	OF	ALL	TEACHERS

Please	do	not	include	paraprofessionals,	such	as	teacher	aides.

FTE	Count

Total	Category	F 16

Thank	you.

Entry	12	Organization	Chart
Completed	-	Aug	2	2021

Instructions

Required	of	Regents,	NYCDOE,	and	Buffalo	BOE	Authorized	Charter	Schools	ONLY	

Upload	the	2020-2021	Organization	Chart.	The	organization	chart	should	include	position	titles	and
reporting	relationships.	Employee	names	should	not	appear	on	the	chart

Organizational	Chart

Filename:	Organizational_Chart_TclR3Vx.pdf	Size:	124.8	kB

Entry	13	School	Calendar
Completed	-	Aug	2	2021

Instructions	for	submitting	School	Calendar

Required	of	ALL	Charter	Schools

Given	these	uncertain	and	changing	times,	charter	schools	may	or	may	not	have	a	school	calendar	ready
to	upload	by	the	submission	deadline	this	year	of	August	2,	2021.	If	the	charter	school	has	a	tentative
calendar	based	on	available	information	and	guidance	at	the	time,	please	submit	with	the	August	2nd

submission.	Charter	schools	will	be	able	to	upload	an	updated	school	calendar	into	the	portal	at	any	time
but	no	later	than	September	15,	2021.	

School	calendars	must	meet	the	minimum	instructional	requirements	as	required	of	other	public	schools
“…	unless	the	school’s	charter	requires	more	instructional	time	than	is	required	under	the	regulations.”

Board	of	Regents-authorized	charter	schools	are	required	to	submit	school	calendars	that	clearly	indicate
the	start	and	end	date	of	the	instructional	year	AND	the	number	of	instructional	hours	and/or
instructional	days	for	each	month.

PLEASE	NOTE:	This	is	a	required	task,	and	it	is	marked	optional	for	administrative	purposes
only.

https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/151101510/22723736/Organizational_Chart_TclR3Vx.pdf
https://stateaid.nysed.gov/attendance/htm_docs/final_adopted_regulations.htm


42	/	44

PS	&	SI-School	Year	Calendar	2021-22

Filename:	PS__SI-School_Year_Calendar_2021-22_YkI41i8.pdf	Size:	142.3	kB

Entry	14	Links	to	Critical	Documents	on	School	Website
Completed	-	Aug	2	2021

Instructions

Required	of	Regents,	NYCDOE,	and	Buffalo	BOE	Authorized	Charter	Schools	ONLY	

By	law,	each	charter	school	is	required	to	maintain	certain	notices	and	policies	listed	on	its	website.
Please	insert	the	link	from	the	school’s	website	for	each	of	the	items:

1.	 Most	recently	filed	Annual	Report	(i.e.,	2019-2020	Annual	Report);
2.	 Most	recent	board	meeting	notice,	documents	to	be	discussed	at	the	meeting	(if	any),	and

webcast	of	Board	meetings	(if	held	virtually	per	Governor’s	Executive	Order);
3.	 Link	to	New	York	State	School	Report	Card;
4.	 Lottery	Notice	announcing	date	of	lottery;
5.	 Authorizer-approved	DASA	Policy;	
6.	 District-wide	safety	plan	and	Authorizer-approved	Discipline	Policy	(as	per	August	29,

2019	Emergency	Response	Plan	Memo);
7.	 Authorizer-approved	FOIL	Policy;	and
8.	 Subject	matter	list	of	FOIL	records.
9.	 	Link	to	School	Reopening	Plan

Form	for	Entry	14	Links	to	Critical	Documents	on
School	Website
School	Name:			Hellenic	Classical	Charter	Schools	-	Staten	Island		

https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/151101511/22809244/PS__SI-School_Year_Calendar_2021-22_YkI41i8.pdf
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/sss/documents/EmergencyResponsePlanMemo201920_final.pdf
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Required	of	ALL	Charter	Schools	noting	that	SUNY-authorized	charter	schools	are	not	required

to	submit	item	5:	Authorizer-approved	DASA	policy	

By	law,	each	charter	school	is	required	to	maintain	certain	notices	and	policies	listed	on	its

website.	Please	insert	the	link	from	the	school’s	website	for	each	of	the	items:

Link	to	Documents

1.	Most	Recent	Annual	Report	(i.e.,	2019-20) https://www.hccs-nys.org/annual-reports

2.	Most	recent	board	meeting	notice,	documents	to
be	discussed	at	the	meeting	(if	any) https://www.hccs-nys.org/board-of-trustees

2a.	Webcast	of	Board	Meetings	(per	Governor's
Executive	Order) https://www.hccs-nys.org/board-of-trustees

3.	Link	to	NYS	School	Report	Card http://www.hccs-nys.org

4.	Lottery	Notice	announcing	date	of	lottery https://www.hccs-nys.org/applications

5.	Authorizer-approved	DASA	Policy	(For	Regents,
NYCDOE,	and	Buffalo	BOE	Authorized	Charter
Schools	ONLY);

https://www.hccs-nys.org/services-minimalist

6.	District-wide	Safety	Plan https://www.hccs-nys.org/services-minimalist

6a.	Authorizer-Approved	Discipline	Policy	(as	per
August	29,	2019	Emergency	Response	Plan	Memo) https://www.hccs-nys.org/services-minimalist

7.	Authorizer-Approved	FOIL	Policy https://www.hccs-nys.org/services-minimalist

8.	Subject	matter	list	of	FOIL	records https://www.hccs-nys.org/services-minimalist

Thank	you.	

Entry	15	Staff	Roster
Completed	-	Aug	2	2021

INSTRUCTIONS

Required	of	Regents-Authorized	Charter	Schools	ONLY

Please	click	on	the	MS	Excel	Staff	Roster	Template	and	provide	the	following	information	for	ANY	and
ALL	instructional	and	non-instructional	employees.

https://www.hccs-nys.org/annual-reports
https://www.hccs-nys.org/board-of-trustees
https://www.hccs-nys.org/board-of-trustees
http://www.hccs-nys.org/
https://www.hccs-nys.org/applications
https://www.hccs-nys.org/services-minimalist
https://www.hccs-nys.org/services-minimalist
https://www.hccs-nys.org/services-minimalist
https://www.hccs-nys.org/services-minimalist
https://www.hccs-nys.org/services-minimalist
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/annualreport/2020-21/2021AnnualReport.html
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•Full	name	for	any	and	all	employees
•TEACH	IDs	for	any	and	all	employees
•Using	the	drop	down	menu,	select	a	role/position	(or	the	best	fit)	for	each	employee	in	the	charter
school.	(Please	provide	additional	information	to	the	Notes	Section	of	the	Staff	Roster	Template	as
necessary)
•Date	of	hire	and	employment	start	dates
•Number	of	years	each	employee	has	had	in	their	respective	professions
•Number	of	years	each	employee	has	had	in	their	current	role	in	the	charter	school
•Using	the	drop	down	menu,	select	the	correct	explanation	as	to	why	a	teacher	is	teaching	outside	of
their	certification	area.

AnnualReportBoRStaffRoster	-	SI

Filename:	AnnualReportBoRStaffRoster_-_SI.xls	Size:	78.8	kB

https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/151101513/22901140/AnnualReportBoRStaffRoster_-_SI.xls
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Board of Trustees 
Hellenic Classical Charter Schools

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Hellenic Classical Charter Schools
(the “School”), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2021, and the 
related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and 
the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the School as of June 30, 2021, and the changes in its net assets and its 
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America.

Report on Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a 
whole. The accompanying schedules of activities and functional expenses by school for the year 
ended June 30, 2021 on pages 17 through 19 are presented for purposes of additional analysis 
and are not a required part of the financial statements. The accompanying schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards on page 20 as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a 
required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management 
and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and 
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, 
in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
October 29, 2021 on our consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting and 
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, 
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance.

  
Harrison, New York
October 29, 2021



ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash 1,494,343$     
Grants and contracts receivable 1,271,474
Due from related party 4,574
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 114,709          

      Total Current Assets 2,885,100       

Property and equipment, net 10,168,016
Security deposit 126,500
Restricted cash 121,040          

13,300,656$   

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 314,750$        
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 1,278,108
Loan payable 150,000
Economic Injury Disaster loan payable, current portion 3,612
Refundable advances 14,380            

     Total Current Liabilities 1,760,850       

Economic Injury Disaster Loan payable 146,388
Paycheck Protection Program loan payable 1,279,500
Deferred rent 188,651          

     Total Liabilities 3,375,389       

Net Assets 

Without donor restrictions 9,774,843
With donor restrictions 150,424          

Total Net Assets 9,925,267       

13,300,656$   

Hellenic Classical Charter Schools

Statement of Financial Position
June 30, 2021

See notes to financial statements
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Without Donor 
Restrictions

With Donor 
Restrictions Total

REVENUE AND SUPPORT
State and local per pupil operating revenue 10,960,921$   -$                 10,960,921$  
State and local per pupil facilities funding 596,405          -                   596,405         
Universal pre-kindergarten 421,304 -                   421,304         
Federal grants 897,827 -                   897,827         
Federal IDEA 51,591 -                   51,591           
State grants 48,833 -                   48,833           
Contributions and grants 10,127 -                   10,127           
Other revenue 132,097          -                   132,097         
Net assets released from restrictions 229,735          (229,735)      -                     

     Total Revenue and Support 13,348,840     (229,735)      13,119,105    

EXPENSES
Program Services
  Regular education 9,431,346 -                   9,431,346      
  Special education 1,179,961       -                   1,179,961      

     Total Program Services 10,611,307     -                   10,611,307    
Supporting Services
  Management and general 2,377,261 -                   2,377,261      
  Fundraising 48,690            -                   48,690           

     Total Expenses 13,037,258     -                   13,037,258    

OTHER REVENUE
Contribution from related party 6,975,945       -                   6,975,945      
Gain of write-off of deferred rent liability 1,365,337       -                   1,365,337      

     Total Other Revenue 8,341,282       -                   8,341,282      

     Change in Net Assets 8,652,864       (229,735)      8,423,129      

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)
Beginning of year (317,052)        215,850       (101,202)        

Transfer of net assets pursuant to merger of 

     related charter school 1,439,031       164,309       1,603,340      

End of year 9,774,843$     150,424$      9,925,267$    

Hellenic Classical Charter Schools

Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2021

See notes to financial statements
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Management
No. of Regular Special and

Positions Education Education Total General Fundraising Total
Personnel Services Costs
   Instructional personnel 92 5,155,508$  648,293$     5,803,801$   47,955$       11,988$       5,863,744$   
   Non Instructional personnel 1 63,500         -                   63,500          -                   -                   63,500          
   Administrative staff personnel 14 -                   -                   -                    1,109,513    14,818         1,124,331     

      Total Personnel Service Costs 107 5,219,008    648,293       5,867,301     1,157,468    26,806         7,051,575     

Employee benefits and payroll taxes 1,251,075    154,398       1,405,473     273,311       6,391           1,685,175     
Contracted services 119,521       15,131         134,652        27,760         620              163,032        
Legal 57,951         7,428           65,379          13,856         304              79,539          
Auditing and accounting fees 63,885         7,975           71,860          14,347         329              86,536          
Classroom and other supplies 421,772       54,063         475,835        100,811       2,219           578,865        
Office expense 77,067         9,560           86,627          17,039         395              104,061        
Student transportation 2,229           269              2,498            463              11                2,972            
Repairs and maintenance 219,475       27,520         246,995        49,830         1,134           297,959        
Telephone and internet service 12,709         1,621           14,330          3,004           66                17,400          
Postage and delivery 25,831         3,302           29,133          6,140           136              35,409          
Insurance 75,127         9,397           84,524          16,945         387              101,856        
Facility expense 1,406,690    182,707       1,589,397     346,791       7,470           1,943,658     
Dues and subscriptions 15,571         1,909           17,480          3,348           80                20,908          
Interest -                   -                   -                    248,391       -                   248,391        
Depreciation and amortization 395,490       47,853         443,343        82,256         1,991           527,590        
Miscellaneous 67,945         8,535           76,480          15,501         351              92,332          

      Total Expenses 9,431,346$  1,179,961$  10,611,307$ 2,377,261$  48,690$       13,037,258$ 

Program Services

Hellenic Classical Charter Schools

Statement of Functional Expenses
Year Ended June 30, 2021

See notes to financial statements
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets 8,423,129$     
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets

to net cash from operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 527,590          
Deferred rent 188,651          
Gain on write-off of deferred rent liability (1,365,337)      
Non-cash contribution from related party (6,975,945)      
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
  Grants and contracts receivable (891,026)         
  Due from related party (4,574)             
  Prepaid expenses and other current assets (10,967)           

     Security deposit (42,167)           
  Accounts payable and accrued expenses 100,871          
  Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 179,709          

  Refundable advances 14,380            

 Net Cash from Operating Activities 144,314          

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITY
Purchases of property and equipment (62,515)           

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash acquired from merger of related charter school 1,414,562       
Repayment of loan payable (136,325)         

 Net Cash from Financing Activities 1,278,237       

Net Change in Cash and Restricted Cash 1,360,036       

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH
Beginning of year 255,347          

End of year 1,615,383$     

SCHEDULE OF NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

Non-cash contribution from related party 6,975,945$     

Repayment of loan payable (6,975,945)      

Hellenic Classical Charter Schools

Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended June 30, 2021

See notes to financial statements
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1. Organization and Tax Status

Hellenic Classical Charter Schools (the “School”) is a New York State, not-for-profit 
educational corporation operating in New York City pursuant to Article 56 of the Education 
Law of the State of New York.  The accompanying financial statements include the following 
charter schools, collectively referred to as the “School”:

Hellenic Classical Charter School (“HCCS-PS”) operates a charter school in the borough 
of Brooklyn, New York City. On February 7, 2005, the Board of Regents and the Board of 
Trustees of the University of the State of New York (the “Board of Regents”) for and on 
behalf of the State Education Department granted the School a charter valid for a term of 
five years and renewable upon expiration. The Board of Regents approved and issued 
several renewals to this charter expiring June 30, 2024. 

Hellenic Classical Charter School – Staten Island (“HCCS-SI”) operates a charter school 
in the borough of Staten Island, New York City. On December 11, 2018, the Board of 
Regents for and on behalf of the State Education Department granted the School a charter 
valid for a term of five years and renewable upon expiration by the Board of Regents. The 
charter expires June 30, 2024.

HCCS-SI and HCCS-PS merged into a single not-for-profit legal entity under HCCS-SI, which 
serves as the sole surviving educational corporation. The plan of merger was approved by the 
Board of Regents on May 1, 2020, and became effective for financial purposes on July 1, 
2020. Each school is authorized by the Board of Regents under HCCS-SI charter, as 
amended to effect the merger, and the surviving entity’s name was changed to Hellenic 
Classical Charter Schools. 

The School was organized to prepare all students intellectually, socially and emotionally, to 
gain entry and succeed in the best high schools in New York City. The School provided 
education to approximately 653 students in grades kindergarten through eighth during the 
2020-2021 academic year.

The School was approved to enter into a two year contract with the New York City  Department 
of Education (“NYCDOE”) commencing with the 2020-2021 school year to operate a 
prekindergarten program with an option to renew for an additional year for HCCS-PS and two 
years for HCCS-SI. This contract is separate from the School's charter and is administered 
from the Department of Education's Division of Early Childhood. The pre-kindergarten 
program provided education to 36 students during the 2020-2021 academic year.

NYCDOE provides free and reduced-price lunches and transportation directly to a majority of 
the School's students. Such costs are not included in these financial statements.

Except for taxes that may be due for unrelated business income, the School is exempt from 
federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and from state 
and local income taxes under comparable laws. 
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation and Use of Estimates

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”), which requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Net Assets Presentation

Resources for various purposes are classified for accounting and reporting purposes into net 
asset categories established according to nature and purpose as follows:

Net assets without donor restrictions - consist of resources available for the general support 
of the School’s operations. Net assets without donor restrictions may be used at the discretion 
of the School’s management and/or the Board of Trustees.

Net assets with donor restrictions – represents amounts restricted by donors for specific 
activities of the School or to be used at a future date. The School records contributions as net 
assets with donor restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations that limit their use 
either through purpose or time restrictions. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a 
time restriction ends or a purpose restriction is fulfilled, net assets with donor restrictions are 
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of activities 
as net assets released from restrictions.

Restricted Cash

Under the provisions of its Charter, the School established an escrow account to pay for legal 
and audit expenses that would be associated with a dissolution, should it occur.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and restricted cash reported within the 
statement of financial position to the amounts presented in the statement of cash flows as of 
June 30, 2021:

Cash 1,494,343$   

Restricted cash 121,040        

1,615,383$   
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Property and Equipment

The School follows the practice of capitalizing all expenditures for property and equipment with 
costs in excess of $1,000 and a useful life in excess of one year. Leasehold improvements are 
amortized over the shorter of the term of the lease, inclusive of all renewal periods, which are 
reasonably assured, or the estimated useful life of the asset ranging from three to thirty years. 
Purchased property and equipment are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition. Maintenance 
and repairs are expensed as incurred. All property and equipment purchased with government 
funding is capitalized, unless the government agency retains legal title to such assets, in which 
case it is expensed as incurred.  

Depreciation and amortization is recognized on the straight-line method over the estimated 
useful lives of such assets as follows: 

Computers and equipment 3-5 years
Furniture and fixtures    5 years

Property and equipment are reviewed for impairment if the use of the asset significantly changes 
or another indicator of possible impairment is identified. If the carrying amount for the asset is not 
recoverable, the asset is written down to its fair value. There were no asset impairments for the
year ended June 30, 2021.

Deferred Rent

The School records its rent in accordance with U.S. GAAP guidance whereby all rental 
payments, including fixed rent increases, are recognized on a straight-line basis as an offset to 
rent expense. The difference between the straight-line rent expense and the required lease 
payments, as well as any unamortized lease incentives, is reflected in deferred rent in the 
accompanying statement of financial position.

Refundable Advances

The School records certain government operating revenue as refundable advances until related 
services are performed, at which time they are recognized as revenue.

Revenue and Support

Revenue from the state and local governments resulting from the School’s charter status and 
based on the number of students enrolled is recorded when services are performed in 
accordance with the charter agreement. Federal and other state and local funds are recorded 
when expenditures are incurred and billable to the government agency.

Contribution revenue is recognized when a donor makes a gift to the School or a promise to 
make a gift to the School which is, in substance, unconditional. Grants and other contributions of 
cash are reported as net assets with donor restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations. 
Contributions and grants that are made to support the School’s current year activities are 
recorded as net assets without donor restrictions. Contributions of assets other than cash are 
recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Functional Expense Allocation

The majority of expenses can generally be directly identified with the program or supporting 
service to which they relate and are charged accordingly. Other expenses by function have been 
allocated among program and supporting services classifications on the basis of periodic time 
and expense studies and other basis as determined by management of the School to be 
appropriate.

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes

The School recognizes the effect of income tax positions only if those positions are more likely 
than not to be sustained. Management has determined that the School had no uncertain tax 
positions that would require financial statement recognition or disclosure. All Forms 990 filed by 
the School are subject to examination. 

Subsequent Events Evaluation by Management

Management has evaluated subsequent events for disclosure and/or recognition in the financial 
statements through the date that the financial statements were available to be issued, which date 
is October 29, 2021. 

On August 30, 2021, the Paycheck Protection Program loan was forgiven in full by the U.S. Small 
Business Administration.  

3. Grants and Contracts Receivable

Grants and contracts receivable consist of federal, state, city entitlements and grants. The School 
expects to collect these receivables within one year. Management has assessed the need for an 
allowance and has determined that such an allowance is not necessary. 

4. Conditional Promise To Give 

On August 22, 2019, the School received a grant from Charter Fund, Inc. totaling $600,000 for 
general support of the School in carrying out its charitable tax exempt purpose. The grant 
contains various donor conditions related to specific milestones and time periods. Since this grant 
represents a conditional promise to give, it is not recognized as contributions and grants revenue 
until donor conditions are met. For the year ended June 30, 2021, no revenue was recognized 
under this grant. At June 30, 2021, the remaining balance of this conditional promise to give was 
$200,000.
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5. Related Party Transactions (not disclosed elsewhere)

The School is an affiliate of Friends of Hellenic Classical Charter Schools, Inc. (“FOH”), a New 
York State not-for-profit education corporation who both share common management and board 
members. The School is supported by FOH through financial, and facility related needs. For the 
year ended June 30, 2021, FOH paid on behalf of the School for shared expenses in the amount 
of $46,245. The net balance due to FOH at June 30, 2021 was $4,574.

Lease agreements were transferred to FOH (see Note 11) and new sublease agreements were 
entered into between FOH (sublandlord) and the School (subtenant). As a result of these 
transfers, unamortized deferred rent liability was written off resulting in a non-operating gain of 
$1,365,337 which is reported as gain on write-off of deferred rent liability in the statement of 
activities for year ended June 30, 2021.

On February 26, 2021, FOH entered into an agreement for tax-exempt revenue bonds with Build 
NYC Resource Corporation to fund the construction of a new building for the Staten Island 
location and certain leasehold improvements for the Park Slop location. Pursuant to this 
agreement, the Bond trustee paid the Sterling National Bank loan payable in full, and the School 
recorded a contribution revenue of $6,975,945 from FOH. The agreement requires the School to 
maintain two financial covenants. The covenant compliance requirements will begin with the year 
ending June 30, 2022. 

6. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment, net consists of the following at June 30, 2021:

Furniture and fixtures 318,440$      

Computers and equipment 661,347        

Leasehold improvements 15,832,252   

16,812,039   

Accumulated depreciation

         and amortization (6,644,023)    

10,168,016$ 

7. Liquidity and Availability of Financial Assets

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions 
limiting their use within one year of the statement of financial position date, are comprised of the 
following at June 30, 2021:

      

Cash 1,494,343$   

Grants and contracts receivable 1,271,474     

Due from related party 4,574            

2,770,391     

Donor-imposed restrictions for

specific purposes (150,424)       

2,619,967$   
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7. Liquidity and Availability of Financial Assets (continued)

As part of the School’s liquidity management plan, the status of grants and contracts receivable 
is monitored regularly and any excess cash is held in highly liquid instruments until it is required 
for operational use. The School will continue to rely on funding received from the NYCDOE to 
cover its future operating costs (see Note 13). 

8. Loans Payable

On May 14, 2020, the School entered into a loan agreement with Charter Fund, Inc., in the 
amount of $150,000 in order to carry out its charitable tax-exempt purposes, specifically as it 
relates to COVID-19 response activities to support distance or remote learning to the purchase 
of technology, internet connectivity, technology support, and printers. The loan does not bear 
interest and matures November 30, 2021.

9. Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

As of June 30, 2021, net assets with donor restrictions in the amount of $150,424 were 
available for the purposes of an air conditioning system and elevator upgrade.

During the year ended June 30, 2021, net assets were released from donor restrictions by 
incurring expenses satisfying the restricted purposes or by the occurrence of other events
specified by donors in the amount of $229,735.

10. Employee Benefit Plan

The School maintains a defined contribution retirement plan qualified under Internal Revenue 
Code 401(k) for the benefit of its eligible employees. Under the plan the School provides 
matching contributions up to 3% of annual compensation on a discretionary basis. The School 
did not contribute to the plan for the year ended June 30, 2021.

11. Lease Commitments

Facility Leases

On July 17, 2019, the School entered into a three year non-cancelable operating lease for the 
facility space expiring on July 31, 2022 and paid a security deposit in the amount of $84,333.
Annual lease payments commence at $200,292 per annum for the first year and increase 
incrementally through the life of the lease. The School received a rent concession in the 
amount of $110,000 for broker fees. The credit will be applied against rent payments due over 
the lease. In September 2020, the School amended this lease for additional space to build a 
new facility expiring on July 31, 2067. The School has two ten year options to renew the lease. 
Under this lease the School will receive a rent abatement in the amount of $784,000. The 
School will recognize rent expense on a straight line basis starting with the year ending June 
30, 2023. On February 26, 2021, the lease agreement was transferred to FOH (see Note 5) 
and a new sublease agreement between FOH (sublandlord) and the School (subtenant) was 
executed effective March 1, 2021 and ending on July 31, 2067.  
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11. Lease Commitments (continued)

On March 14, 2012, the School entered into a thirty-year non-cancelable operating lease for
the facility space expiring on June 30, 2042. The School has the option to extend the lease
for ten years and another nine years. Annual lease payments commence at $500,000 per
annum for the first two years and increase incrementally through the life of the lease. The
School obtained a credit of $3,900,060 as a result of improvements to the building completed
in September 2014. The credit will be applied against rent payments due over the first 15
years of the lease commencing after construction is completed and amortized over 30 years.
During the year ended June 30, 2020 the School received $260,000 of the credit each year.

The School has a credit due of $790,000 as of June 30, 2021. On February 26, 2021, the 
lease agreement was transferred to FOH (see Note 5) and a new sublease agreement 
between FOH (sublandlord) and the School (subtenant) was executed effective March 1, 2021
and ending on June 30, 2047.  

The future minimum lease payments under these leases are as follows for the years ending 
June 30:

2022 3,230,132$       

2023 3,248,451         

2024 3,278,433         

2025 3,333,433         

2026 3,338,433         

Thereafter 144,741,569     

161,170,452$   

Rent expense is recognized on the straight-line basis. The differences between cash 
payments under the lease agreement and the straight-line rent have been recognized as 
deferred rent in the accompanying statement of financial position from inception of the lease. 
Balance in deferred rent at June 30, 2021 was $188,651.

Equipment leases

The School leases various copy machines under non-cancelable operating leases expiring in 
various years through 2025. 

The future minimum lease payments under the copier lease are as follows for the years ending 
June 30:

2022 24,180$            

2023 24,180              

2024 19,412              

2025 4,257                

72,029$            

The copier lease expense for the year ended June 30, 2021 was $30,124.
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12. Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the School to concentrations of credit and market 
risk consist principally of cash on deposit with financial institutions, which from time to time may 
exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) limit. The School does not believe 
that a significant risk of loss due to the failure of a financial institution presently exists. As of June 
30, 2021, approximately $1,202,000 was maintained with an institution in excess of FDIC limits. 

13. Concentration of Revenue and Support

The School receives a substantial portion of its support and revenue from the NYCDOE. For the 
year ended June 30, 2021, the School received approximately 54% of its total revenue and 
support from the NYCDOE. If the charter school laws were modified, reducing or eliminating 
these revenues, the School’s finances could be materially adversely affected.

14. Contingency

Certain grants and contracts may be subject to audit by the funding sources.  Such audits might 
result in disallowances of costs submitted for reimbursement. Management is of the opinion that 
such cost disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect on the accompanying financial 
statements. Accordingly, no amounts have been provided in the accompanying financial 
statements for such potential claims.

15. Paycheck Protection Program Loan Payable

On May 3, 2020, the School qualified for and received a loan pursuant to the Paycheck Protection 
Program (“PPP”), a program implemented by the U.S. Small Business Administration under the 
Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act, from a qualified PPP lender, for an 
aggregate principal amount of $1,279,500 (the "PPP Loan"). The PPP Loan bears interest at a 
fixed rate of 1.0% per annum, with the first six months of interest deferred, has a term of five 
years, and is unsecured and guaranteed by the U.S. Small Business Administration. The 
principal amount of the PPP Loan is subject to forgiveness under the PPP upon the School’s 
request to the extent that the PPP Loan proceeds are used to pay expenses permitted by the 
PPP, including payroll costs, covered rent and mortgage obligations, and covered utility 
payments incurred by the School.

As of June 30, 2021, the PPP loan is recognized as debt on the statement of financial position. 
The School will recognize the income from the forgiveness of the PPP Loan in the period it 
receives the notification of forgiveness from the SBA in accordance with Accounting
Standards Codification (“ASC”) 470 Debt. The School applied for full forgiveness of the PPP
Loan with respect to these covered expenses and on August 30, 2021, the SBA has notified 
the School that the PPP loan was forgiven.
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16. Economic Injury Disaster Loan Payable (continued)

On June 2, 2020, the School qualified for and received a loan pursuant to the Economic Injury 
Disaster Loan Program (the “EIDL Program”), a program implemented by the U.S. Small 
Business Administration under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act, from 
a qualified EIDL Program lender, for an aggregate principal amount of $150,000 (the "EIDL 
loan”). The EIDL loan bears interest at a fixed rate of 2.75% per annum. Monthly installment 
payments including principal and interest of $641 began twelve months from date of loan and 
matures June 2, 2050. The EIDL loan is secured with a security interest in the School’s 
tangible and intangible personal property, and is guaranteed by the U.S. Small Business 
Administration. EDIL program loan proceeds are to be used solely as working capital to 
alleviate economic injury caused by disaster occurring in the month of January 31, 2020 and 
continuing thereafter.

The future minimum payments under the loan are as follows for the years ending June 30:

2022 3,612$              

2023 3,713                

2024 3,816                

2025 3,923                

2026 4,032                

Thereafter 130,904            

150,000$          

17. Merger Information

As stated in Note 1, the New York State Board of Regents approved the merger of HCCS-PS  
effective July 1, 2020. HCCS-PS ceased to exist as a separate legal entity in conjunction with 
the merger. 
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17. Merger Information (continued)

The plan of merger was approved by the New York State Board of Regents. Below is a 
summary of opening balances as of July 1, 2019 for HCCS-PS:

ASSETS
Cash 1,343,522$   

Grants and contracts receivable 172,582        

Due from related party 184,766        

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 44,570          

Property and equipment, net 10,493,655   

Restricted cash 71,040          

12,310,135$ 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 118,862$      

Accounts payable - construction 50,984          

Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 907,602        

Loan payable 7,112,270     

Deferred rent, current portion 216,835        

Paycheck Protection Program loan payable 1,279,500     

Economic Injury Disaster loan payable 150,000        

Deferred rent 870,742        

     Total Liabilities 10,706,795   

Net Assets

Without donor restrictions 1,439,031     

With donor restrictions 164,309        

Total Net Assets 1,603,340     

12,310,135$ 

18. Risks and Uncertainties

The School’s operations and financial performance may be affected by the recent COVID-19 
outbreak which has spread globally and is expected to adversely affect economic conditions 
throughout the world. If the outbreak continues and conditions worsen, the School may 
experience a disruption in operations as well as a decline in revenue activities. Economic 
uncertainty is related to the potential reduction and/or delays in state and local per pupil operating 
revenue, shortfalls and variations in enrollment, and operational and other changes that could 
increase expenses. The outbreak may adversely affect the School’s activities, financial condition, 
results of operations, and cash flows. Management is closely monitoring the impact of COVID-
19 and believes the School is taking appropriate actions to mitigate the negative impact. 
However, management is unable to estimate the financial impact, if any, related to this matter.

* * * * *
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Without Donor 
Restrictions

With Donor 
Restrictions Total

Without Donor 
Restrictions

With Donor 
Restrictions Total Total

REVENUE AND SUPPORT
State and local per pupil operating revenue 8,313,606$    -$                  8,313,606$    2,647,315$   -$                  2,647,315$   10,960,921$  
State and local per pupil facilities funding -                     -                    -                     596,405 -                    596,405        596,405         
Universal pre-kindergarten 183,176 -                    183,176         238,128 -                    238,128        421,304         
Federal grants 510,523 -                    510,523         387,304 -                    387,304        897,827         
Federal IDEA 43,959 -                    43,959           7,632 -                    7,632            51,591           
State grants 28,901 -                    28,901           19,932 -                    19,932          48,833           
Contributions and grants 10,127 -                    10,127           -                    -                    -                    10,127           
Other revenue 21,647 -                    21,647           110,450 -                    110,450        132,097         
Net assets released from restrictions 13,885           (13,885)         -                     215,850        (215,850)       -                    -                     

     Total Revenue and Support 9,125,824      (13,885)         9,111,939      4,223,016     (215,850)       4,007,166     13,119,105    

EXPENSES
Program Services
  Regular education 6,543,566 -                    6,543,566      2,887,780 -                    2,887,780     9,431,346      
  Special education 786,755         -                    786,755         393,206        -                    393,206        1,179,961      

     Total Program Services 7,330,321      -                    7,330,321      3,280,986     -                    3,280,986     10,611,307    
Supporting Services
  Management and general 1,586,720 -                    1,586,720      790,541 -                    790,541        2,377,261      
  Fundraising 32,779           -                    32,779           15,911          -                    15,911          48,690           

     Total Expenses 8,949,820      -                    8,949,820      4,087,438     -                    4,087,438     13,037,258    

OTHER REVENUE
Contributions from related party 6,975,945 -                    6,975,945      -                    -                    -                    6,975,945      
Gain of write-off of deferred rent liability 1,087,577      -                    1,087,577      277,760        -                    277,760        1,365,337      

     Total Other Revenue 8,063,522      -                    8,063,522      277,760        -                    277,760        8,341,282      

     Change in Net Assets 8,239,526      (13,885)         8,225,641      413,338        (215,850)       197,488        8,423,129      

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)
Beginning of year -                     -                    -                     (317,052)       215,850        (101,202)       (101,202)       

Transfer of net assets pursuant to merger of 

     related charter school 1,439,031      164,309        1,603,340      -                    -                    -                    1,603,340      

End of year 9,678,557$    150,424$      9,828,981$    96,286$        -$                  96,286$        9,925,267$    

HCCS - SIHCCS - PS

Hellenic Classical Charter Schools

Schedule of Activities by School
Year Ended June 30, 2021

See independent auditors' report
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Management
No. of Regular Special and

Positions Education Education Total General Fundraising Total
Personnel Services Costs
   Instructional personnel 66 3,858,673$  471,713$     4,330,386$  32,201$       8,050$         4,370,637$  
   Non Instructional personnel 1 63,500         -                   63,500         -                   63,500         
   Administrative staff personnel 10 -                   -                   -                   770,253       11,609         781,862       

      Total Personnel Service Costs 77 3,922,173    471,713       4,393,886    802,454       19,659         5,215,999    

Employee benefits and payroll taxes 997,420       119,860       1,117,280    203,872       4,993           1,326,145    
Contracted services 71,515         8,594           80,109         14,618         356              95,083         
Legal 28,957         3,480           32,437         5,919           144              38,500         
Auditing and accounting fees 45,291         5,443           50,734         9,257           226              60,217         
Classroom supplies 211,840       25,478         237,318       43,341         1,062           281,721       
Office expense 58,681         7,057           65,738         12,006         294              78,038         
Student transportation 2,124           255              2,379           434              11                2,824           
Repairs and maintenance 147,819       17,763         165,582       30,214         740              196,536       
Telephone and internet service 6,844           822              7,666           1,399           34                9,099           
Postage and delivery 13,434         1,614           15,048         2,746           68                17,862         
Insurance 52,357         6,297           58,654         10,712         262              69,628         
Facility expense 552,180       66,355         618,535       112,865       2,761           734,161       
Dues and subscriptions 13,188         1,585           14,773         2,696           66                17,535         
Interest -                   -                   248,391       -                   248,391       
Depreciation and amortization 375,048       45,069         420,117       76,660         1,879           498,656       
Miscellaneous 44,695         5,370           50,065         9,136           224              59,425         

      Total Expenses 6,543,566$  786,755$     7,330,321$  1,586,720$  32,779$       8,949,820$  

Hellenic Classical Charter Schools

Schedule of Functional Expenses
Year Ended June 30, 2021

HCCS - PS

Program Services

See independent auditors' report
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Management
No. of Regular Special and

Positions Education Education Total General Fundraising Total
Personnel Services Costs
   Instructional personnel 26 1,296,835$  176,580$     1,473,415$  15,754$       3,938$         1,493,107$  
   Administrative staff personnel 4 -                   -                   -                   339,260       3,209           342,469       

      Total Personnel Service Costs 30 1,296,835    176,580       1,473,415    355,014       7,147           1,835,576    

Employee benefits and payroll taxes 253,655       34,538         288,193       69,439         1,398           359,030       
Contracted services 48,006         6,537           54,543         13,142         264              67,949         
Legal 28,994         3,948           32,942         7,937           160              41,039         
Auditing and accounting fees 18,594         2,532           21,126         5,090           103              26,319         
Classroom supplies 209,932       28,585         238,517       57,470         1,157           297,144       
Office expense 18,386         2,503           20,889         5,033           101              26,023         
Student transportation 105              14                119              29                -                   148              
Repairs and maintenance 71,656         9,757           81,413         19,616         394              101,423       
Telephone and internet service 5,865           799              6,664           1,605           32                8,301           
Postage and delivery 12,397         1,688           14,085         3,394           68                17,547         
Insurance 22,770         3,100           25,870         6,233           125              32,228         
Facility expense 854,510       116,352       970,862       233,926       4,709           1,209,497    
Dues and subscriptions 2,383           324              2,707           652              14                3,373           
Depreciation and amortization 20,442         2,783           23,225         5,596           113              28,934         
Miscellaneous 23,250         3,166           26,416         6,365           126              32,907         

      Total Expenses 2,887,780$  393,206$     3,280,986$  790,541$     15,911$       4,087,438$  

Hellenic Classical Charter Schools

Schedule of Functional Expenses
Year Ended June 30, 2021

HCCS - SI

Program Services

See independent auditors' report
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Pass-through Total 
Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/ Federal CFDA Entity Identifying Provided to Federal 
Program or Cluster Title Number Number Subrecipients Expenditures

U.S. Department of Education
Pass-through New York State Education Department:

Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 0021-21-4357 -$                         125,992$             
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 0021-21-5685 -                           14,871                 

-                           140,863               

Supporting Effective Instruction State Grants
  (Formerly Improving Teacher Quality State Grants) 84.367 0147-21-4357 -                           20,081                 
Supporting Effective Instruction State Grants
  (Formerly Improving Teacher Quality State Grants) 84.367 0147-21-5685 -                           1,739                   

-                           21,820                 

Education Stabilization Fund/Elementary and 

  Secondary School Emergency Relief Fund   84.425D 5890-21-4357 -                           115,891               
Education Stabilization Fund/Elementary and 

  Secondary School Emergency Relief Fund II   84.425D 5891-21-4357 -                           77,853                 
Education Stabilization Fund/Elementary and 

  Secondary School Emergency Relief Fund II   84.425D 5891-21-5685 -                           44,168                 
Education Stabilization Fund/Elementary and 

  Secondary School Emergency Relief Fund ARP   84.425U 5880-21-4357 -                           120,756               

-                           358,668               

Charter Schools 84.282 Not available -                           326,526               
Charter Schools/Covid-19 Relief 84.282 Not available -                           49,950                 

-$                         376,476               

Total U.S. Department of Education 897,827               

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 897,827$             

Hellenic Classical Charter Schools

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2021

See independent auditors' report and notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards
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Hellenic Classical Charter Schools

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2021

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”) includes the 
federal award activity of the School under programs of the federal government for the year 
ended June 30, 2021.  The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform 
Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the 
School, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, 
or cash flows of the School.  

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such 
expenditures are recognized following cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, 
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.   

3. Indirect Cost Rate

The School has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under 
the Uniform Guidance.
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed

in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditors’ Report

Board of Trustees
Hellenic Classical Charter Schools

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of Hellenic Classical Charter Schools (the “School”), which comprise the statement of 
financial position as of June 30, 2021, and the related statements of activities, functional 
expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 29, 2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion 
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the School’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

PKF O’CONNOR DAVIES, LLP
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528  I  Tel: 914.381.8900  I  Fax: 914.381.8910  I  www.pkfod.com 

PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any responsibility 
or liability for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms.



Board of Trustees
Hellenic Classical Charter Schools
Page 2

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’s financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct 
and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that 
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed 
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Harrison, New York
October 29, 2021



Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and Report on Internal 
Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance

Independent Auditors’ Report

Board of Trustees
Hellenic Classical Charter Schools

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Hellenic Classical Charter Schools (the “School”) compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct 
and material effect on each of the School’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 
2021. The School’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results 
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and 
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the School’s major federal 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We 
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the 
audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). 
Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the School’s compliance with those 
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each 
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the School’s 
compliance.

PKF O’CONNOR DAVIES, LLP
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528 I Tel: 914.381.8900 I Fax: 914.381.8910 I www.pkfod.com 

PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any responsibility 
or liability for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms.



Board of Trustees 
Hellenic Classical Charter Schools
Page 2

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the School complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major 
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the School is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning 
and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the School’s internal control over 
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each 
major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform 
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control 
over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s
internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such 
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 
A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements 
of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Harrison, New York
October 29, 2021
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Hellenic Classical Charter Schools

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2021

Section I - Summary of Auditors’ Results

Financial Statements 
Type of report the auditor issued on whether the 

financial statements audited were prepared in
accordance with U.S. GAAP: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?           yes    X   no
Significant deficiency(ies) identified?           yes    X   none reported

Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted?           yes    X   no

Federal Awards
Internal control over major federal programs:

Material weakness(es) identified?           yes    X   no
Significant deficiency(ies) identified?           yes    X   none reported

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance
for major federal programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required 
to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?             yes    X   no

Identification of major federal programs:

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

84.282         Charter Schools

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type
A and type B programs: $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes X  no

Section II – Financial Statement Findings

During our audit, we noted no material findings for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Section III – Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

During our audit, we noted no material instances of noncompliance and none of the costs tested 
in the federal financially assisted programs are questioned or recommended to be disallowed.

Section IV – Prior Year’s Findings

Not applicable. The School was not subject to Uniform Guidance for the year ended June 30, 
2020.



360 Hamilton Avenue, 7th Fl
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HELLENIC CLASSICAL CHARTER SCHOOL
SI ESCROW
646 5TH AVE
BROOKLYN NY 11215-5401

Contact Us

Client Services 855-274-2800

Mailing  Address
360 Hamilton Avenue, 7th Fl
White Plains, NY 10601

Online Access https://www.snb.com

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTS

ACCOUNT TYPE ACCOUNT NUMBER ENDING BALANCE

COMMERCIAL CHECKING WITH ANALYSIS XXXXXX7460 $50,000.00

COMMERCIAL CHECKING WITH ANALYSIS - XXXXXX7460
Account Summary
Date Description
06/01/2021 Beginning Balance $50,000.00 Average Ledger Balance $50,000.00

0 Debit(s) this period $0.00 Average Available Balance $50,000.00
0 Credit(s) this period $0.00

06/30/2021 Ending Balance $50,000.00

Transaction Activity

Transaction Date Description Debits Credits Balance

06/01/2021 Beginning Balance $50,000.00

No activity this statement period

06/30/2021 Ending Balance $50,000.00

Daily Balances

Date Amount

05/31/2021 $50,000.00

Overdraft and Returned Item Fees

Total for this period Total year-to-date

Total Returned Item Fees $0.00 $0.00

Total Overdraft Fees $0.00 $0.00

June 2021
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Hellenic Classical Charter Schools

Independent Auditors’ Communication of 
Internal Control Related Matters Identified in the Audit
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PKF O’CONNOR DAVIES, LLP
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528  I  Tel: 914.381.8900  I  Fax: 914.381.8910  I  www.pkfod.com 

PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any responsibility or 
liability for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms.

Board of Trustees and Management of
Hellenic Classical Charter Schools

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Hellenic Classical Charter Schools
(the “School”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the School’s internal control over 
financial reporting (“internal control”) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a 
timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be deficiencies, significant 
deficiencies, or material weaknesses and, therefore, there can be no assurance that all such 
deficiencies have been identified.

We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses, as 
defined above.

We have other observations and recommendations that are opportunities for strengthening internal 
control and/or operating efficiency, presented in Addendum A to this letter.

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the audit committee, 

the Board of Trustees, The New York City Department of Education, The State Education Department 

of the State University of New York, and others within the School, and is not intended to be and should 

not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Harrison, New York
October 29, 2021



Addendum A

Other Observations and Recommendations for Strengthening Internal Control and/or
Operating Efficiency

1. Updating the Policies and Procedures Manual

We noted that although the School previously adopted and implemented a formal 
financial policies and procedures manual (the “manual”), there are a number of policies, 
procedures, and thresholds that should be reviewed and updated by management
pursuant to the merger of the two charter schools into one legal entity. This will help 
improve the School’s ability to process, record, summarize, and report financial 
information.

We recommend that consideration be given to updating the manual wherein thresholds 
are increased to a more practical range and finance and accounting policies and 
procedures are clearly defined.

The School has engaged an outside consulting firm to work with management during the 
year ending June 30, 2022 in updating the manual. 

* * * * *



Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of 
Trustees Member  

 
 
Name:  
 
____ CHARLES CAPETANAKIS____________________________________ 
 
Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name, 
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education 
corporation):  
 
_______Hellenic Classical Charter Schools___________________________  
 

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees 
(“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative). 

Chairman 

 

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?  
____Yes __x__No   
 
If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you 
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 
 
N/A 
 
 

3. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person employed by the school?  
 
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person 
could benefit from your participation.  
 
 
Yes. Married to Dena Capetanakis, the Director of Community & 
Engagement. I recuse myself from decisions relating to her 
employment. 

4. Are you related, by blood, marriage, or legal adoption/guardianship, to any 
student currently enrolled in the school?  

No. 

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person 
could benefit from your participation.  
 
N/A 
 

 



5. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person that could otherwise 
benefit from your participation as a board member of this school?  

No. 

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person 
could benefit from your participation.  
 
N/A 
 

6. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school, 
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive 
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which 
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation; 
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling 
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans 
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation, 
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to, 
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?  

____Yes ___x_No 
 
If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.  
 
N/A 

  

7. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that 
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with 
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) 
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the 
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no 
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered 
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment 
status, salary, etc. 

 
Date(s) Nature of financial 

interest/transaction 
Steps taken 
to avoid a 
conflict of 
interest, 

(e.g., did not 
vote, did not 
participate in 
discussion) 

Name of person 
holding interest or 

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

you 

NONE.    
 
 
 

 



 

 

8. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, 
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real 
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and 
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or 
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a 
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or 
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are 
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services 
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in 
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the 
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.” 

 

 
 
 

   June 9, 2021 
________ ________________________________________________________ 
Signature       Date 
 
Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may 
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of 
Information Law.  Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.  
 
 
 
 

Organization 
conducting 

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 

business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee 
and/or immediate 
family member of 

household holding an 
interest in the 
organization 

conducting business 
with the school(s) 

and the nature of the 
interest 

Steps 
taken to 

avoid 
conflict of 

interest 

 
None. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   



 
Business Telephone: 212-557-200 
_____________________________________________________ 
 
Business Address:  Davidoff Hutcher & Citron 605 3rd Avenue, New York, NY 
10158________________________________________________________ 
 
E-mail Address: cc@dhclegal.com 
________________________________________________________ 
 
Home Telephone: 917-282-6106 
________________________________________________________ 
 
Home Address:  93 86th Street, Brooklyn, NY 11209 
________________________________________________________ 
 
        last revised 04/2021 



Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of 
Trustees Member  

 
 
Name:  
 
____ EFFIE LEKAS ____________________________________ 
 
Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name, 
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education 
corporation):  
 
Hellenic Classical Charter Schools  
___________________________________________________  
 

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees 
(“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative). 

 

Member 

 

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?  
____Yes __x__No   
 
If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you 
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 
 
N/A 
 
 

3. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person employed by the school?  
 
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person 
could benefit from your participation.  
 
 

No. 

4. Are you related, by blood, marriage, or legal adoption/guardianship, to any 
student currently enrolled in the school?  

No. 

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person 
could benefit from your participation.  
 
N/A 
 



 

5. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person that could otherwise 
benefit from your participation as a board member of this school?  

No. 

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person 
could benefit from your participation.  
 

N/A 
 

6. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school, 
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive 
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which 
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation; 
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling 
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans 
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation, 
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to, 
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?  

____Yes ___x_No 
 
If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.  
 
N/A 

  

7. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that 
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with 
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) 
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the 
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no 
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered 
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment 
status, salary, etc. 

 

Date(s) Nature of financial 
interest/transaction 

Steps taken 
to avoid a 
conflict of 
interest, 

(e.g., did not 
vote, did not 
participate in 
discussion) 

Name of person 
holding interest or 

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

you 

NONE.    
 
 
 





Business Telephone: 718-997-4520 
________________________________________________________ 
 
Business Address:  65-30 Kissena Blvd., Flushing, NY 11367 
________________________________________________________ 
 
E-mail Address: effielekas@hotmail.com 
________________________________________________________ 
 
Home Telephone: 718-423-2738 
________________________________________________________ 
 
Home Address:  56-08 212th Street, Bayside Hills, NY 11364 
________________________________________________________ 
 
        last revised 04/2021 



Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of 
Trustees Member  

 
 
Name:  
 
____ HARVEY NEWMAN ____________________________________ 
 
Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name, 
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education 
corporation):  
 
_______Hellenic Classical Charter Schools___________________________  
 

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees 
(“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative). 

Secretary 

 

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?  
____Yes __x__No   
 
If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you 
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 
 
N/A 
 
 

3. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person employed by the school?  
 
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person 
could benefit from your participation.  
 
 

No. 

4. Are you related, by blood, marriage, or legal adoption/guardianship, to any 
student currently enrolled in the school?  

No. 

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person 
could benefit from your participation.  
 
N/A 
 

 



5. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person that could otherwise 
benefit from your participation as a board member of this school?  

No. 

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person 
could benefit from your participation.  
 

N/A 
 

6. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school, 
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive 
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which 
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation; 
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling 
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans 
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation, 
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to, 
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?  

____Yes ___x_No 
 
If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.  
 
N/A 

  

7. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that 
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with 
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) 
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the 
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no 
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered 
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment 
status, salary, etc. 

 

Date(s) Nature of financial 
interest/transaction 

Steps taken 
to avoid a 
conflict of 
interest, 

(e.g., did not 
vote, did not 
participate in 
discussion) 

Name of person 
holding interest or 

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

you 

NONE.    
 
 
 

 



 

 

8. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, 
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real 
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and 
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or 
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a 
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or 
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are 
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services 
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in 
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the 
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.” 

 

 
 
 
 
________ ________________________________________________________ 
Signature       Date 
 
Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may 
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of 
Information Law.  Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.  
 
 
 
 
 

Organization 
conducting 

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 

business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee 
and/or immediate 
family member of 

household holding an 
interest in the 
organization 

conducting business 
with the school(s) 

and the nature of the 
interest 

Steps 
taken to 

avoid 
conflict of 

interest 

 
None. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   





Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of 
Trustees Member  

 
 
Name:  
 
____ BIANCA RAJPERSAUD ____________________________________ 
 
Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name, 
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education 
corporation):  
 
_______Hellenic Classical Charter Schools___________________________  
 
1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees 

(“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative). 
Member 
 

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?  
____Yes __x__No   
 
If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you 
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 
 
N/A 
 
 

3. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person employed by the school?  
 
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person 
could benefit from your participation.  
 
 
No. 

4. Are you related, by blood, marriage, or legal adoption/guardianship, to any 
student currently enrolled in the school?  

No. 

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person 
could benefit from your participation.  
 
N/A 
 

 



5. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person that could otherwise 
benefit from your participation as a board member of this school?  

No. 

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person 
could benefit from your participation.  
 
N/A 
 

6. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school, 
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive 
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which 
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation; 
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling 
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans 
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation, 
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to, 
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?  
____Yes ___x_No 
 
If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.  
 
N/A 

  
7. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that 

you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with 
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) 
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the 
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no 
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered 
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment 
status, salary, etc. 

 
Date(s) Nature of financial 

interest/transaction 
Steps taken 
to avoid a 
conflict of 
interest, 

(e.g., did not 
vote, did not 
participate in 
discussion) 

Name of person 
holding interest or 

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

you 

NONE.    
 
 
 

 



 
 

8. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, 
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real 
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and 
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or 
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a 
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or 
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are 
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services 
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in 
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the 
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.” 

 

 
 
 
 
________ ________________________________________________________ 
Signature       Date 
 
Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may 
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of 
Information Law.  Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.  
 
 
 
 
 

Organization 
conducting 

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 

business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee 
and/or immediate 
family member of 

household holding an 
interest in the 
organization 

conducting business 
with the school(s) 

and the nature of the 
interest 

Steps 
taken to 

avoid 
conflict of 

interest 

 
None. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   

6/8/2021



Business Telephone: 646-428-3255 
_____________________________________________________ 
 
Business Address:  605 Third Ave, New York, NY 
________________________________________________________ 
 
E-mail Address: br@dhclegal.com 
________________________________________________________ 
 
Home Telephone: 646-925-0078 
________________________________________________________ 
 
Home Address:  22 Ada Drive, Staten Island, NY 10314 
________________________________________________________ 
 
        last revised 04/2021 



Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of 
Trustees Member  

 
 
Name:  
 
____ GRAZIA SVOKOS ____________________________________ 
 
Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name, 
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education 
corporation):  
 
_______Hellenic Classical Charter Schools___________________________  
 
1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees 

(“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative). 
Member 
 

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?  
____Yes __x__No   
 
If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you 
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 
 
N/A 
 
 

3. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person employed by the school?  
 
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person 
could benefit from your participation.  
 
 
No. 

4. Are you related, by blood, marriage, or legal adoption/guardianship, to any 
student currently enrolled in the school?  

No. 

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person 
could benefit from your participation.  
 
N/A 
 

 



5. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person that could otherwise 
benefit from your participation as a board member of this school?  

No. 

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person 
could benefit from your participation.  
 
N/A 
 

6. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school, 
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive 
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which 
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation; 
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling 
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans 
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation, 
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to, 
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?  
____Yes ___x_No 
 
If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.  
 
N/A 

  
7. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that 

you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with 
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) 
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the 
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no 
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered 
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment 
status, salary, etc. 

 
Date(s) Nature of financial 

interest/transaction 
Steps taken 
to avoid a 
conflict of 
interest, 

(e.g., did not 
vote, did not 
participate in 
discussion) 

Name of person 
holding interest or 

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

you 

NONE.    
 
 
 

 



 
 

8. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, 
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real 
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and 
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or 
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a 
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or 
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are 
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services 
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in 
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the 
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.” 

 

 
 
 
 
________ ________________________________________________________ 
Signature       Date 
 
Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may 
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of 
Information Law.  Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.  
 
 
 
 
 

Organization 
conducting 

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 

business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee 
and/or immediate 
family member of 

household holding an 
interest in the 
organization 

conducting business 
with the school(s) 

and the nature of the 
interest 

Steps 
taken to 

avoid 
conflict of 

interest 

 
None. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   

Grazia Svokos
June 8, 2021



Business Telephone: 201-230-3396 
_____________________________________________________ 
 
Business Address:  63 White Pine Road, Franklin Lakes, NJ 07417 
________________________________________________________ 
 
E-mail Address: grsvokos@gmail.com 
________________________________________________________ 
 
Home Telephone: 201-644-8007 
________________________________________________________ 
 
Home Address:  633 White Pine Road, Franklin Lakes, NY 07417 
________________________________________________________ 
 
        last revised 04/2021 



Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of 
Trustees Member  

 
 
Name:  
 
____ DR. LIANA THEODORATOU ____________________________________ 
 
Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name, 
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education 
corporation):  
 
_______Hellenic Classical Charter Schools___________________________  
 
1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees 

(“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative). 
Member 
 

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?  
____Yes __x__No   
 
If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you 
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 
 
N/A 
 
 

3. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person employed by the school?  
 
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person 
could benefit from your participation.  
 
 
No. 

4. Are you related, by blood, marriage, or legal adoption/guardianship, to any 
student currently enrolled in the school?  

No. 

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person 
could benefit from your participation.  
 
N/A 
 

 



5. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person that could otherwise 
benefit from your participation as a board member of this school?  

No. 

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person 
could benefit from your participation.  
 
N/A 
 

6. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school, 
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive 
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which 
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation; 
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling 
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans 
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation, 
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to, 
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?  
____Yes ___x_No 
 
If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.  
 
N/A 

  
7. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that 

you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with 
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) 
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the 
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no 
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered 
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment 
status, salary, etc. 

 
Date(s) Nature of financial 

interest/transaction 
Steps taken 
to avoid a 
conflict of 
interest, 

(e.g., did not 
vote, did not 
participate in 
discussion) 

Name of person 
holding interest or 

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

you 

NONE.    
 
 
 

 



 
 

8. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, 
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real 
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and 
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or 
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a 
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or 
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are 
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services 
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in 
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the 
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.” 

 

 
 
 
 
________ ________________________________________________________ 
Signature       Date 
 
Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may 
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of 
Information Law.  Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.  
 
 
 
 
 

Organization 
conducting 

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 

business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee 
and/or immediate 
family member of 

household holding an 
interest in the 
organization 

conducting business 
with the school(s) 

and the nature of the 
interest 

Steps 
taken to 

avoid 
conflict of 

interest 

 
None. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   

Vaia Trittas
06/28/21



Business Telephone: 212-998-3990 
_____________________________________________________ 
 
Business Address:  NYU, New York, NY 10003 
________________________________________________________ 
 
E-mail Address: HLT1@nyu.edu 
________________________________________________________ 
 
Home Telephone: 212-998-3990 
________________________________________________________ 
 
Home Address:  Greenwich, NY 10003 
________________________________________________________ 
 
        last revised 04/2021 



























HCCS BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES June 29, 2021 

 

MINUTES OF 

HELLENIC CLASSICAL CHARTER SCHOOLS 

 

SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

HELD ON JUNE 29, 2021 AT 9:30 a.m. 

 
Members and Staff – via Zoom Conferencing 

 

PRESENT 

Charles Capetanakis     Chairman 

Harvey Newman     Secretary 

Nikolaos Leonardos     Treasurer  

Effie Lekas      Member 

Bianca Rajpersaud     Member 

Christina Tettonis     Superintendent 

Joy Petrakos      Chief of Operations 

Natasha Caban     Principal HCCS-PS 

Cathy Kakleas      Principal HCCS-SI 

Christina Portelos     Director of Finance & Operations 

Dena Capetanakis     Director of Community & Engagement 

Stacy Kokkoros     Business Administrative Assistant 

 

ABSENT 

Grazia Svokos      Member 

Dr. Liana Theodoratou    Member 

Dean Angelakos     Member 

Nik Mathews      Member 

 

Mr. Capetanakis chaired the meeting.  Joy Petrakos acted as recorder.  There were five 

Board members present at the Board meeting as such having quorum.   

  

The first item on the agenda is the approval of the minutes of the meeting on May 26, 

2021.   On a motion made by Mr. Leonardos and seconded by Mrs. Lekas the minutes were 

unanimously approved.  

 

 The second item on the agenda is the approval of the adoption of the budgets.  

 

Mr. Capetanakis asked if there were any questions on the budgets for the Chief of Operations.  

Mrs. Petrakos reported that they went through the budgets thoroughly and increased both 

budgets by three percent.  She stated that the per pupil allocation reflects an increase of about 

$720 per pupil in addition to the ESSER and ARP Grants, as noted in her report.  Mrs. Petrakos 

stressed that the pandemic impacted the budgets for the 2021 school year.  She continued to 

report that they gave all employees a 3% raise.  The School continues to pay for 93% of health 

benefits with the employee paying the remaining 7% percent even though the health benefits 

are slated to go up by 10%.  In addition, we are anticipating making the 401K match starting 



HCCS BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES June 29, 2021 

 

FY22.  Mrs. Petrakos continued to report that no benefits were diminished for the school.  

NWEA, Teachers College to name a few will continue as in the past.  Mrs. Petrakos thanked 

the Board for their guidance. 

 

Mr. Newman asked if the staff were aware that the School assumed the health care costs?  Mrs. 

Petrakos answered that the staff was advised at the last faculty meetings and through an email 

from her.   

 

Mr. Capetanakis added that salaries had been frozen for the past 2 years.  He stated that the 

good news is the restoration of that and especially with the gap in health care benefit coverage, 

this is good news.  The budgets are healthy, he added.   

 

Mr. Newman asked if there is any news on the PPP forgiveness.  Mrs. Petrakos answered that 

the PPP forgiveness application was submitted in May for $1,279,500.  The Loan Source 

(entity that the loan was transferred to from Sterling Bank) has 60 days for their verifiers to 

review the application before it is submitted to the SBA.  After it is submitted, the SBA has 90 

days to review the application and come to a decision about our forgiveness.   

 

Mrs. Petrakos also stated that the auditors are continuing the interim audit prep. She added that 

we will most likely require a Single Audit this year.  This is an audit of a non-federal entity that 

expends $750,000.00 or more in federal funds in one year.  This will be an additional $10k in 

audit fees and additional audit testing. 

 

Mr. Leonardos motions to adopt the approval of the budgets.  Mr. Newman seconds the motion.  

There being no further discussion the motion carries unanimously. 

 

SUPERINTENDENT REPORT 

Mrs. Tettonis began by thanking the Board for all of their help this difficult year.  She 

expressed how much it meant to the administration to have the Board’s support.  She also 

thanked her administration and staff of both schools, calling them Superheroes.  The teachers 

are amazing.  They taught in-person and remotely while physically in the building.  There were 

constant changes, and they were able to constantly adapt.   

 

Mrs. Tettonis continued to report that there were many graduations these past two weeks.  She 

congratulated all of the students for going to superb high schools. 

 

She reported that there is a lot to do in preparation for summer school and a smooth opening in 

September.  Both schools are already preparing curriculum mapping and units of study.  They 

are also hiring many teachers for both schools.   

 

In addition, Mrs. Tettonis mentioned that both Ms. Caban and Ms. Kakleas are distinguished 

principals.   

 

Amy Shore, from CEI sent the video trainings to the Board. 
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Mrs. Tettonis stated that they are submitting to SED the results of NWEA.  It was very 

challenging to test students during a pandemic, she reported.  They measured growth through 

Fontas and Pinell.  Mrs. Tettonis was pleased with the results.  According to the benchmark of 

the Fontas and Pinell, 100% of HCCS-SI students made progress and 88% of HCCS-PS 

students made progress.  In addition, our 8th grade students at HCCS-PS took the Living 

Environment Regents and had a 94% passing rate.   They also took the common core Algebra 

regent and 100% passed. All of these percentages are in the Superintendent’s report. 

 

Waivers were given to students for the Greek regents. 

 

Mr. Newman stated that if you look at the data you can make many interpretations.  Our 

schools tend to get students at an entry level of PreK or Kindergarten and tends to not add 

students at a later grade.  This impacts a lot of numbers.  In other districts there are immigrant 

students registering in all grades.  Likewise, yes we are comparing a final number but the 

elements that are going into creating the final number vary according to our special 

circumstances.   

 

Mrs. Tettonis stated that we are increasing our ELL and special education numbers.  She 

reported that HCCS-SI has had two open houses a month since September, 2020.  Mrs. 

Petrakos added that in her May report the numbers went up as well.  The school identified and 

accepted, in HCCS-SI 12 ELLS and 6 special education students.  In HCCS-PS, the School 

accepted 29 ELL students and 22 Special education students. What we are focused on is 

working to recruit and retain the ELL and special education student populations.  She stressed 

that our numbers have increased and these numbers might change by September as registration 

continues. The lottery preferences for our schools, Mrs. Petrakos added. 

 

Mr. Newman added that we should be proactive in three areas that have been identified: 

1 – recruitment of these unique populations 

2 - addressing instructionally of what our programs offer 

3 - the outcomes of these populations and how successful we are. 

 

Mrs. Tettonis reported that Mrs. Petrakos applied for a permit to close 18th street between 5th 

and 4th Avenue.  We received the permit. It was very successful.  We will be applying for next 

year. 

 

Mrs. Tettonis reported that we do not have any updates on students that want to stay remote in 

the Fall.  Mrs. Tettonis stated that at this time they have about 91 remote students.  She asked 

the Board if there is no waiver, do we continue to teach remote and how do we do that with a 

full classroom?  Mrs. Caban added that most of our 91 remote students are planning on 

transitioning back to in-person learning in September.  One specific family informed us that 

unless there is a vaccine available, they do not plan on returning.   

 

Mr. Leonardos asked if we are able to offer remote teaching in September.  Mrs. Petrakos 

answered that it is not a matter of being willing to do it, it is a matter of funding.  We are 

waiting for the State to let us know if we will be funded for remote learning. We do not know if 

this will continue.   
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Mr. Newman asked if there was a cohort of students that were committed for an entire year, 

could we create a plan for their academic needs and get compensated for it?  Is this something 

that we can look at?   Mrs. Tettonis answered it would not be easy to have all of these students 

in one cohort because they are in different grades.  In other words, it would not be easy. 

 

Mrs. Lekas congratulated Mr. Konstantopoulos for having a summer sports program at HCCS-

PS.  

 

Mrs. Lekas asked about the construction at HCCS-SI.  Mrs. Petrakos reported that come 

September, there will be three 1st grade classes and two new 3rd grade classes.  Two new 

classrooms will be created on the second-floor lobby and the third room will be in the room 

known as the landlord’s “Greek room”.  The new rooms are temporary and will be taken down 

once our new building is ready. 

 

Mrs. Lekas also asked how it is going with the Department of Buildings.  Mrs. Petrakos 

informed the Board that the application has been approved but has not been uploaded to the 

DOB portal yet.  Once the permit is released Mrs. Tettonis and Mrs. Capetanakis have been 

planning and are ready to go for a ribbon cutting ceremony.  

 

Mr. Leonardos brought to the attention of the Board that the construction budget might be 

slightly higher due to the increase cost of insurance.   

 

HCCS-PS elevator and air conditioning is estimated to be completed by the first day of school.   

 

There being no unfinished business, Mr. Capetanakis asked for a motion to adjourn.  The 

motion to adjourn was made by Mr. Newman.   Mrs. Lekas seconded the motion.  The meeting 

was adjourned at 10:30 a.m.   

 

The next Board meeting will be held via Zoom Conferencing on July 21, 2021, at 9:30 a.m. 

 

 

 

                                                                               Harvey Newman 

                                                                                       Harvey Newman, Secretary 
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Hellenic Classical Charter Schools (HCCS) 

Park Slope (PS), est. 2005 / Staten Island (SI), est. 2018 
School Calendar 2021-2022 (TENTATIVE) 

 

2021 
Monday, September 6 School closed, Labor Day 

 

Tuesday & Wednesday, September 7 & 8 School closed, Rosh Hashanah 

 

Thursday, September 9 Kindergarten Orientation               9:30 am 

Pre-Kindergarten Orientation        12:00 pm 

6th Grade Orientation                     1:30 pm 

Friday, September 10 First Full Day of School – all students 

Pre-Kindergarten Dismissal          10:30 am 

Kindergarten Dismissal                 11:30 am 

Monday, September 13 Pre-Kindergarten Dismissal          11:30 am 

Kindergarten Dismissal                 12:00 pm 

Thursday, September 16 School closed, Yom Kippur 

 

Monday, October 11 School closed, 

Columbus Day/Italian Heritage Day/Indigenous Peoples’ Day 

 

Tuesday, November 2 Half-day instruction for students/Professional Development for staff 

 

Wednesday, November 10 Half-day instruction for students, Parent Teacher Conferences 

 

Thursday, November 11 School Closed, Veterans Day 

 

Wednesday, November 24 Half-day instruction for students 

 

Thursday & Friday, November 25 & 26 School closed, Thanksgiving 

 

Thursday, December 23 Half-day instruction for students 

 

Friday, December 24 – Sunday, January 2 School closed, Winter Recess 

 

2022 
Monday, January 3 Students return to school 

 

Monday, January 17 School closed, Rev. Dr. M. Luther King, Jr. Day 

 

Tuesday, February 1 School closed, Lunar New Year 

 

Monday, February 21 - Friday, February 25 School closed, Midwinter Recess 

 

Thursday, March 10 Half-day instruction for students, Parent Teacher Conferences 

  

Friday, April 15 - Friday, April 22 School closed, Spring Recess  

 

Monday, May 2 School closed, Eid al-Fitr 

 

Monday, May 30 School closed, Memorial Day 

 

Thursday, June 9 Half-day instruction for students 

 

Monday, June 20 School closed, Juneteenth 

 

Monday, June 27 Last day of school for all students, Half day 

 
 



Fire Alarm and Life Safety System 

Inspection Certificate 

For 

 Hellenic Charter School  

 646 5th Ave  

 Brooklyn, NY 11215  

Tested to NFPA 72 Standards 

This Inspection was performed in accordance with applicable NFPA Standards.  The subsequent pages 

of this report provide performance measurements, listed ranges of acceptable results, and complete 

documentation of the inspection.  Whenever discrepancies exist between acceptable performance 

standards and actual test results, notes and/or recommended solutions have been proposed or provided 

for immediate review and approval. 

 

Inspection Date 

Mar 25, 2021 

Building: Hellenic Charter School Company: ADT Commercial LLC 

Contact: Joy Petrakos Contact: Marlon A. Henry 

Title: Manager Title: Technician 
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Executive Summary 
Generated by: BuildingReports.com 

 
Building Information 

  Building: Hellenic Charter School  Contact: Joy Petrakos 

  Address: 646 5th Ave Phone: 718-499-0957  

  Address:  Fax:  

  City/State/Zip: Brooklyn, NY 11215  Mobile:  

  Country: United States of America Email:  

Inspection Performed By 

  Company: ADT Commercial LLC  Inspector: Marlon A. Henry 

  Address: Red Hawk Fire & Security Phone: 914-330-1320  

  Address: 6 Skyline Dr. Fax:  

  City/State/Zip: Hawthorne, NY 10532  Mobile: 914-330-1320  

  Country: United States of America Email: marlon.henry@redhawkus.com  

System Control Unit 

  Manufacturer: Edwards Inspection Date: 03/25/2021  IDC Style: B 

  Model Number: EST-3 Install Date: 01/06/2014  SLC Style: 6 

  Software Version: 4.01 Version Date: 08/19/2015  NAC Style: Y 

  Location: 1st Main Office Current Protection: Breaker 

Monitoring 

  Company:  Phone:  Account #:  

Central Station Signal Verification 

  Type:  Mfg:  Model #:  

  Test Time/Date:  Restore Time 
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Inspection Summary 

Category 
Total Items Serviced Passed Failed/Other 

Qty % Qty % Qty % Qty % 

  Sound Test 1 1.04% 1 100.00% 1 100.00% 0 0% 

  Control 20 20.83% 20 100.00% 20 100.00% 0 0% 

  Initiating 59 61.46% 59 100.00% 59 100.00% 0 0% 

  Supervisory 13 13.54% 13 100.00% 13 100.00% 0 0% 

  Indicating 3 3.12% 3 100.00% 3 100.00% 0 0% 

Totals 96 100% 96 100.00% 96 100.00% 0 0% 

Certification 

Company: ADT Commercial LLC    Building: Hellenic Charter School  

Inspector: Marlon A. Henry   Contact: Joy Petrakos 

  

  Signed:    Signed:  
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Notes & Recommendations 
Generated by: BuildingReports.com 

 
Building: Hellenic Charter School Control Panel: 1 - Edwards  EST-3 

The Notes & Recommendations Report details additional inspection notes made by the Inspectors during the course of the 

building inspection. Notes are grouped by Category. 

ScanID Note Device Type Location Comment 

Control 
32786637 1 Battery 1st Booster Panel Passed 

over charged 

32786638 2 Battery 1st Booster Panel Passed 

Over charged 

32786640 3 Battery 1st Booster Panel Passed 

overcharged 

32786641 4 Battery 1st Booster Panel Passed 

Overcharged 

Initiating 
38972937 5 Waterflow Switch Basement Bypass Valve Passed 

Cannot access.. CP 

33741090 6 Smoke Detector 1st Admin Office Passed 

No access 

32786767 7 Pull Station 3rd Stair B Passed 

Switch is broken 

33741125 8 Duct Detector 4th RTU- 1 Return Roof Passed 

very high cannot service.. magnet tested 

33741126 9 Duct Detector 4th RTU- 1 Supply  Roof Passed 

very high not accessible.. cannot service no access to test with Magnet 

33741128 10 Duct Detector 4th RTU- 2 Return  Roof Passed 

very high not accessible 

33741129 11 Duct Detector 4th RTU- 2 Supply   Roof Passed 

very high not accessible 
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Inspection & Testing 
Generated by: BuildingReports.com 

 
Building: Hellenic Charter School Control Panel: 1 - Edwards EST-3   

The Inspection & Testing section lists all of the items inspected in your building.  Items are grouped by Passed or 

Failed/Other. Items are listed by Category. Each item includes the services performed, and the time & date at which 

testing occurred. 
 

Device Type Location Service Time Date 

Passed 

Control 

Annunciator 1st Main Entrance Tested 10:46:15 AM 03/25/2021 

Battery 1st Booster Panel Tested 1:31:32 PM 03/25/2021 

Battery 1st Booster Panel Tested 1:34:28 PM 03/25/2021 

Battery 1st Booster Panel Tested 2:08:57 PM 03/25/2021 

Battery 1st Booster Panel Tested 2:09:03 PM 03/25/2021 

Battery 1st Booster Panel Tested 2:09:12 PM 03/25/2021 

Battery 1st Booster Panel Tested 2:09:36 PM 03/25/2021 

Battery 1st Booster Panel Tested 2:09:52 PM 03/25/2021 

Battery 1st Booster Panel Tested 2:09:56 PM 03/25/2021 

Battery 1st MFACU Tested 2:08:42 PM 03/25/2021 

Battery 1st MFACU Tested 2:08:46 PM 03/25/2021 

Communication Line 1st MFACU 718-499-2437 Visually Checked 1:31:05 PM 03/25/2021 

Communication Line 1st MFACU 718-499-2443 Visually Checked 1:31:01 PM 03/25/2021 

Control Panel 1st Main Office Visually Checked 10:04:05 AM 03/25/2021 

Disconnect Basement Stair B Tested 11:56:35 AM 03/25/2021 

Power Supply 1st Main Office Visually Checked 2:08:51 PM 03/25/2021 

Power Supply 1st Main Office Visually Checked 2:09:07 PM 03/25/2021 

Power Supply 1st Main Office Visually Checked 2:09:42 PM 03/25/2021 

Power Supply 1st Main Office Visually Checked 2:09:59 PM 03/25/2021 

Special Control 1st MFACU Tested/Cleaned 1:30:54 PM 03/25/2021 

Indicating 

Bell 1st MFACU Alarm Bell Visually Checked 10:04:20 AM 03/25/2021 

Bell 1st MFACU Trouble Bell Visually Checked 10:04:35 AM 03/25/2021 

Bell 1st MFACU Water Bell Visually Checked 10:04:13 AM 03/25/2021 

Initiating 

CO Detector Ground Classroom Corridor Visually Checked 10:43:27 AM 03/25/2021 

Duct Detector 4th RTU- 1 Return Roof Tested 10:25:26 AM 03/25/2021 

Duct Detector 4th RTU- 1 Supply  Roof Tested 10:25:40 AM 03/25/2021 

Duct Detector 4th RTU- 2 Return  Roof Tested 10:27:22 AM 03/25/2021 

Duct Detector 4th RTU- 2 Supply   Roof Tested 10:27:35 AM 03/25/2021 

Duct Detector 4th RTU- 3 Return Tested 10:28:38 AM 03/25/2021 

Duct Detector 4th RTU- 3 Supply Tested 10:29:20 AM 03/25/2021 

Heat Detector Basement Inside Boiler Room Visually Checked 10:56:25 AM 03/25/2021 

Heat Detector Basement Inside Boiler Room Visually Checked 11:38:54 AM 03/25/2021 

Heat Detector Basement Inside Fire Pump Room Visually Checked 11:56:27 AM 03/25/2021 

Heat Detector Basement Inside Kitchen Visually Checked 11:38:59 AM 03/25/2021 

Heat Detector Basement Inside Kitchen Visually Checked 11:56:21 AM 03/25/2021 
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Device Type Location Service Time Date 

Passed 
Heat Detector 1st Elevator Lobby Visually Checked 11:56:53 AM 03/25/2021 

Heat Detector 4th Break Room By The Gym Visually Checked 10:31:37 AM 03/25/2021 

Pull Station Basement Boiler Room Rear Exit Tested 10:58:28 AM 03/25/2021 

Pull Station Basement Stair A Tested 10:58:09 AM 03/25/2021 

Pull Station Basement Stair B Tested 11:12:42 AM 03/25/2021 

Pull Station 1st main Entrance Tested 10:44:17 AM 03/25/2021 

Pull Station 1st Main Entrance Lobby Tested 10:43:54 AM 03/25/2021 

Pull Station 1st Stair A Tested 10:42:26 AM 03/25/2021 

Pull Station 1st Stair B Tested 10:42:50 AM 03/25/2021 

Pull Station 2nd Stair A Tested 10:41:52 AM 03/25/2021 

Pull Station 2nd Stair B Tested 10:38:46 AM 03/25/2021 

Pull Station 2nd Stair C Tested 10:39:11 AM 03/25/2021 

Pull Station 2nd Stair D Tested 10:40:07 AM 03/25/2021 

Pull Station 3rd Stair C Tested 10:35:57 AM 03/25/2021 

Pull Station 3rd Stair D Tested 10:37:49 AM 03/25/2021 

Pull Station 3rd Stair A Tested 10:37:37 AM 03/25/2021 

Pull Station 3rd Stair B Tested 10:36:41 AM 03/25/2021 

Pull Station 4th Storage Stair D by Stage Tested 10:27:53 AM 03/25/2021 

Pull Station 4th Stair A Tested 10:18:28 AM 03/25/2021 

Pull Station 4th Stair C Gym Tested 10:19:14 AM 03/25/2021 

Pull Station 4th Stair D Tested 10:22:03 AM 03/25/2021 

Smoke Detector Basement Electric Room Tested/Cleaned 10:51:06 AM 03/25/2021 

Smoke Detector Basement Elevator Mechanical Room Tested/Cleaned 12:36:46 PM 03/25/2021 

Smoke Detector 1st Besides Main FACP Tested/Cleaned 10:44:29 AM 03/25/2021 

Smoke Detector 1st Besides Main Corridor By Double Door Tested/Cleaned 10:43:45 AM 03/25/2021 

Smoke Detector 1st Admin Office Tested/Cleaned 10:44:58 AM 03/25/2021 

Smoke Detector 1st Handicapped Lift Tested/Cleaned 10:50:30 AM 03/25/2021 

Smoke Detector 1st In Center Stair Tested/Cleaned 1:21:52 PM 03/25/2021 

Smoke Detector 1st North Corridor By Center Stair Tested/Cleaned 10:42:41 AM 03/25/2021 

Smoke Detector 1st Room 105 Fire Shutter Tested/Cleaned 10:49:42 AM 03/25/2021 

Smoke Detector 1st Room 105 Fire Shutter Tested/Cleaned 10:50:01 AM 03/25/2021 

Smoke Detector 2nd By Smoke Fire Door Tested/Cleaned 10:38:18 AM 03/25/2021 

Smoke Detector 2nd By Smoke Fire Door Tested/Cleaned 10:38:30 AM 03/25/2021 

Smoke Detector 2nd Elevator Lobby Tested/Cleaned 10:39:20 AM 03/25/2021 

Smoke Detector 3rd Elevator Lobby Tested/Cleaned 10:46:59 AM 03/25/2021 

Smoke Detector 3rd IT Room Tested/Cleaned 12:46:36 PM 03/25/2021 

Smoke Detector 4th Top Of Stair Stair A Tested/Cleaned 10:23:22 AM 03/25/2021 

Smoke Detector 4th Top Of Stair Stair C Tested/Cleaned 10:32:00 AM 03/25/2021 

Smoke Detector 4th Electrical Room Tested/Cleaned 10:24:24 AM 03/25/2021 

Smoke Detector 4th Elevator Lobby Tested/Cleaned 10:23:53 AM 03/25/2021 

Smoke Detector 4th Top Of Stair D Tested/Cleaned 10:31:08 AM 03/25/2021 

Smoke Detector Roof Top Of Stair B Tested/Cleaned 10:33:26 AM 03/25/2021 

Waterflow Switch Basement Bypass Valve Tested 1:16:54 PM 03/25/2021 

Waterflow Switch 1st North Stair Tested 1:23:03 PM 03/25/2021 

Waterflow Switch 2nd Floor Stair A Tested 1:02:07 PM 03/25/2021 

Waterflow Switch 3rd Floor Tested 12:51:57 PM 03/25/2021 

Waterflow Switch 4th North Stair Tested 12:50:41 PM 03/25/2021 

Supervisory 

Tamper Switch Basement Fire Pump Room Main Valve Tested 1:17:38 PM 03/25/2021 

Tamper Switch Basement Fire Pump Room Main Valve Tested 1:18:25 PM 03/25/2021 
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Device Type Location Service Time Date 

Passed 
Tamper Switch Basement Fire Pump Room Main Valve Tested 1:20:59 PM 03/25/2021 

Tamper Switch Basement Fire Pump Room Tested 1:11:15 PM 03/25/2021 

Tamper Switch Basement Fire Pump Room Tested 1:12:12 PM 03/25/2021 

Tamper Switch Basement Fire Pump Room Tested 1:20:08 PM 03/25/2021 

Tamper Switch Basement Bypass Valve Tested 1:13:00 PM 03/25/2021 

Tamper Switch Basement Jockey Pump Tested 1:18:48 PM 03/25/2021 

Tamper Switch Basement Jockey Pump Tested 1:19:20 PM 03/25/2021 

Tamper Switch 1st North Stair Tested 1:23:56 PM 03/25/2021 

Tamper Switch 2nd Floor Tested 1:00:13 PM 03/25/2021 

Tamper Switch 3rd Floor Tested 1:09:50 PM 03/25/2021 

Tamper Switch 4th North Stair Tested 12:48:18 PM 03/25/2021 
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Service Summary 

Generated by: BuildingReports.com  

Building: Hellenic Charter School  

The Service Summary section provides an overview of the services performed in this report.  

 

Device Type Service Quantity 

Passed 

Annunciator Tested 1 

Battery Tested 10 

Bell Visually Checked 3 

CO Detector Visually Checked 1 

Communication Line Visually Checked 2 

Control Panel Visually Checked 1 

Disconnect Tested 1 

Duct Detector Tested 6 

Heat Detector Visually Checked 7 

Power Supply Visually Checked 4 

Pull Station Tested 19 

Smoke Detector Tested/Cleaned 21 

Special Control Tested/Cleaned 1 

Tamper Switch Tested 13 

Waterflow Switch Tested 5 

Total 95 

Grand Total 95 
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Sound and Visual Testing 
Generated by: BuildingReports.com 

 
Building: Hellenic Charter School 
The Sound and Visual Testing section lists various points throughout your building where audible and visual alarm 

notification devices were tested.  Any bar-coded audible and visual devices will appear in the Inspection and Testing 

section of this report.  Items in this section are grouped by Passed or Failed/Other. Where specific decibel readings were 

recorded, they will appear under the ambient and alarm columns. The Voice column indicates whether the Sound Test 

Point passed the Voice Intelligibility requirements. The STI or Sound Transmission Index is shown if recorded. 

  Location   Comment 

Ambient

 dB 

Alarm

 dB 

 Intelligibility Sound 

Test Voice STI 

Passed 

Sound Test Points 

All Floors Passed     0001 
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Battery & Power Supply Testing 
Generated by: BuildingReports.com 

 
Building: Hellenic Charter School Control Panel: 1 - Edwards EST-3 

The Battery & Power Supply Testing section details the readings and measurements of batteries and power supplies used 

to provide power to the fire alarm and life safety systems. Items are grouped by Passed or Failed/Other. 

Battery 

Type Location 

Rated 

Ah 

Rated 

Volts 

Pre 

Test 

Post 

Test 

Min 

Ah 

Tested 

Ah 

Passed 
Sealed Lead Acid 1st Booster Panel 7 12     

Sealed Lead Acid 1st Booster Panel 7 12     

Sealed Lead Acid 1st Booster Panel 7 12     

Sealed Lead Acid 1st Booster Panel 7 12     

Sealed Lead Acid 1st Booster Panel 7 12     

Sealed Lead Acid 1st Booster Panel 7 12     

Sealed Lead Acid 1st Booster Panel 7 12     

Sealed Lead Acid 1st Booster Panel 7 12     

Sealed Lead Acid 1st MFACU 26 12     

Sealed Lead Acid 1st MFACU 26 12     

Power Supply 

Protection Type Location Rated Ah Rated Volts Charging Voltage 

Passed 
Breaker 1st Main Office 10 120  

Breaker 1st Main Office 10 120  

Breaker 1st Main Office 10 120  

Breaker 1st Main Office 10 120  
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Inventory & Warranty Report  

Generated by: BuildingReports.com  

Building: Hellenic Charter School  Control Panel: 1 - Edwards EST-3 

The Inventory & Warranty Report lists each of the devices and items that are included in your Inspection Report. A 

complete inventory count by device type and category is provided. Items installed within the last 90 days, within the last 

year, and devices installed for two years or more are grouped together for easy reference.  

 

Device or Type Category % of Inventory Quantity 

Control Panel  Control 1.04% 1 

Bell  Indicating 3.12% 3 

Pull Station  Initiating 19.79% 19 

Smoke Detector  Initiating 21.88% 21 

Duct Detector  Initiating 6.25% 6 

Heat Detector  Initiating 7.29% 7 

CO Detector Initiating 1.04% 1 

Annunciator  Control 1.04% 1 

Disconnect  Control 1.04% 1 

Tamper Switch Supervisory  13.54% 13 

Waterflow Switch  Initiating 5.21% 5 

Special Control  Control 1.04% 1 

Communication Line  Control 2.08% 2 

Battery  Control 10.42% 10 

Power Supply  Control 4.17% 4 

Sound Test  Sound Test  1.04% 1 

 

Type Qty Model # Description Install Date 

In Service - 3 Years to 5 Years 

Ultra Tech 

Battery 2 ISO9001  Sealed Lead Acid 09/30/2016  

In Service - 5 Years to 10 Years  

Edwards 

Duct Detector 4 Siga-SD Photoelectric 08/31/2015  

EST 

Duct Detector 2 Siga-SD Photoelectric 08/31/2015  

Smoke Detector 2 Siga2-PS 

 

08/31/2015  

Edwards 

Bell 1 439D-10AW 

 

11/11/2014  

Bell 1 439D-6AW 

 

11/11/2014  

Bell 1 439D-8AW 

 

11/11/2014  

Heat Detector 1 Siga-HRS Rate-of-Rise 11/11/2014  

Power Supply 4 BPS-10A 

 

11/11/2014  

Smoke Detector 1 Siga-PS Photoelectric 11/11/2014  

Smoke Detector 1 Siga2-PS Photoelectric 11/11/2014  

EST 

Annunciator 1 3-RLCM LCD Display 11/11/2014  

Disconnect 1 SIGA-270 

 

11/11/2014  
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Heat Detector 1 Siga-HRS 

 

11/11/2014  

Heat Detector 5 Siga-HRS Rate-of-Rise 11/11/2014  

Pull Station 19 SIGA-270 Single Action 11/11/2014  

Smoke Detector 1 SIGA-270 

 

11/11/2014  

Smoke Detector 1 Siga-PS 

 

11/11/2014  

Smoke Detector 10 Siga-PS Photoelectric 11/11/2014  

Smoke Detector 5 Siga2-PS Photoelectric 11/11/2014  

FSI 

Special Control 1 Diagram Riser Diagram 11/11/2014  

Lansdale internatio 

Tamper Switch 2 GBT4 

 

11/11/2014  

Leoch 

Battery 1 BPS-10A Sealed Lead Acid 11/11/2014  

Battery 5 DJW12-7 Sealed Lead Acid 11/11/2014  

Macurco 

CO Detector 1 CM-15A 

 

11/11/2014  

Potter Electric  

Tamper Switch 1 OSYSU-2 

 

11/11/2014  

Power-Sonic 

Battery 2 PS-12260 Sealed Lead Acid 11/11/2014  

System Sensor 

Tamper Switch 3 OSY2 

 

11/11/2014  

Waterflow Switch 4 WFD25 

 

11/11/2014  

Verizon  

Communication Line 2 POTS 

 

11/11/2014  

Victaulic 

Tamper Switch 1 704W  

 

11/11/2014  

Tamper Switch 3 705W  

 

11/11/2014  

Tamper Switch 1 Series 705 

 

11/11/2014  

Tamper Switch 2 Series 728 

 

11/11/2014  

Waterflow Switch 1 Series 705ttt  

 

11/11/2014  

Edwards 

Control Panel 1 EST-3 

 

01/06/2014  
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Zone Address Report 
Generated by: BuildingReports.com 

 
Building: Hellenic Charter School Control Panel: 1 - Edwards  EST-3 

The Zone Address Report lists all of the devices and items that have an individual address, or are grouped together under 

a common zone.  The device type, location, and description are included for your reference. 

Address Device Type Location Type ScanID 

Zone/Circuit: 02 

0001 Smoke Detector 1st Room 105 Fire Shutter  33741267 

0002 Smoke Detector Basement Elevator Mechanical Room Photoelectric 33741141 

0003 Smoke Detector Basement Electric Room Photoelectric 45687801 

0005 Smoke Detector 1st Room 105 Fire Shutter  33741135 

0007 Heat Detector Basement Inside Boiler Room Rate-of-Rise 32786752 

0008 Heat Detector Basement Inside Fire Pump Room Rate-of-Rise 38972675 

0010 Heat Detector Basement Inside Kitchen Rate-of-Rise 32786753 

0011 Smoke Detector 3rd Elevator Lobby Photoelectric 32786784 

0012 Smoke Detector 2nd Elevator Lobby Photoelectric 32786785 

0015 Heat Detector Basement Inside Kitchen Rate-of-Rise 32786754 

0016 Smoke Detector 2nd By Smoke Fire Door Photoelectric 33741130 

0017 Smoke Detector 2nd By Smoke Fire Door Photoelectric 33741131 

0020 Smoke Detector Roof Top Of Stair B Photoelectric 33742146 

0023 Smoke Detector 1st Besides Main FACP Photoelectric 32786789 

0025 Smoke Detector 1st Handicapped Lift  33741163 

0026 Smoke Detector 1st Admin Office Photoelectric 33741090 

0027 Smoke Detector 1st Besides Main Corridor By Double 

Door 

Photoelectric 32786788 

0028 Smoke Detector 1st North Corridor By Center Stair Photoelectric 32786786 

0029 Smoke Detector 1st In Center Stair Photoelectric 33741143 

0128 CO Detector Ground Classroom Corridor  33741296 

0132 Tamper Switch Basement Fire Pump Room  38972940 

0133 Tamper Switch Basement Fire Pump Room Main Valve  38972936 

0135 Waterflow Switch 2nd Floor Stair A  32786796 

0136 Tamper Switch 2nd Floor  32786795 

0137 Waterflow Switch 3rd Floor  32786793 

0138 Tamper Switch 3rd Floor  32786794 

0139 Pull Station Basement Boiler Room Rear Exit Single Action 32786778 

0141 Tamper Switch Basement Fire Pump Room Main Valve  38972935 

0155 Waterflow Switch 1st North Stair  32786797 

0156 Tamper Switch 1st North Stair  32786798 

0158 Waterflow Switch Basement Bypass Valve  38972937 

0159 Tamper Switch Basement Bypass Valve  38972938 

0160 Tamper Switch Basement Fire Pump Room  38972939 

0161 Tamper Switch Basement Fire Pump Room  38972677 

0162 Tamper Switch Basement Jockey Pump  38972934 

0163 Tamper Switch Basement Jockey Pump  38972933 

0203 Pull Station 3rd Stair A Single Action 32786768 

0204 Pull Station 3rd Stair B Single Action 32786767 

0205 Pull Station 2nd Stair A Single Action 32786772 
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0206 Pull Station 2nd Stair B Single Action 32786771 

0207 Pull Station 1st Stair A Single Action 32786775 

0208 Pull Station 1st Stair B Single Action 32786779 

0209 Pull Station Basement Stair A Single Action 32786776 

0210 Disconnect Basement Stair B  32786777 

0210 Pull Station Basement Stair B Single Action 32796777 

0211 Pull Station 3rd Stair C Single Action 32786766 

0212 Pull Station 2nd Stair C Single Action 32786770 

0213 Pull Station 1st Main Entrance Lobby Single Action 32786774 

0214 Pull Station 1st main Entrance Single Action 33741151 

Zone/Circuit: 03 

0002 Smoke Detector 3rd IT Room Photoelectric 33742153 

0005 Smoke Detector 4th Top Of Stair D  33742148 

0007 Smoke Detector 4th Elevator Lobby Photoelectric 32786781 

0010 Duct Detector 4th RTU- 2 Supply   Roof Photoelectric 33741129 

0011 Duct Detector 4th RTU- 1 Return Roof Photoelectric 33741125 

0012 Duct Detector 4th RTU- 2 Return  Roof Photoelectric 33741128 

0013 Duct Detector 4th RTU- 1 Supply  Roof Photoelectric 33741126 

0014 Duct Detector 4th RTU- 3 Supply Photoelectric 33742151 

0015 Duct Detector 4th RTU- 3 Return Photoelectric 33742150 

0016 Smoke Detector 4th Top Of Stair Stair C Photoelectric 33742152 

0017 Smoke Detector 4th Top Of Stair Stair A Photoelectric 32786780 

0018 Smoke Detector 4th Electrical Room Photoelectric 32786782 

0126 Pull Station 2nd Stair D Single Action 32786773 

0127 Pull Station 3rd Stair D Single Action 32786769 

0128 Pull Station 4th Stair C Gym Single Action 32786764 

0129 Pull Station 4th Stair D Single Action 32786765 

0130 Pull Station 4th Stair A Single Action 32786763 

0131 Pull Station 4th Storage Stair D by Stage Single Action 33742147 

0134 Tamper Switch Basement Fire Pump Room Main Valve  38972676 

0142 Waterflow Switch 4th North Stair  32786792 

0143 Tamper Switch 4th North Stair  32786791 
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CO Number: 310136493F     

Certificate of Occupancy

This  certifies  that  the  premises  described  herein  conforms  substantially  to  the  approved  plans and specifications and to the

This document  or a copy shall be available for inspection at  the
building at all reasonable times.

requirements of all applicable laws, rules and regulations for the uses and occupancies specified.  No change of use or occupancy 
shall be made unless a new Certificate of Occupancy is issued.

Borough: BrooklynA.

Address: 224 18TH STREET

Building Identification Number (BIN): 3336795

Block Number: 00634

Lot Number(s): 34  

Building Type:
Altered

Certificate Type: Final

Effective Date: 12/24/2018

B.

C.

D.

E.

Construction classification:

Building Occupancy Group classification:

Multiple Dwelling Law Classification:

No. of stories: Height in feet: No. of dwelling units:

Fire Protection Equipment:

Type and number of open spaces:

This Certificate is issued with the following legal limitations:

4 59

E

None

Fire alarm system, Sprinkler system, Fire Suppression system

0

Parking spaces (10), Parking (1953 square feet)

None

Borough Comments: None

For zoning lot metes & bounds, please see BISWeb.

(2014/2008 Code)

1 (Prior to 1968 Code)

Borough Commissioner Commissioner

DOCUMENT CONTINUES ON NEXT PAGE



Page 2 of 2

CO Number: 310136493F     

Certificate of Occupancy

              
       
Floor 
From To

          
Live load 
lbs per 
sq. ft.

 
Maximum
persons 
permitted

          
Dwelling or 
Rooming 
Units

                  
        
Zoning 
use group

Building 
Code 
occupancy 
group

                                                                 
                                                                 
                                                            
Description of use

Permissible Use and Occupancy
All Building Code occupancy group designations are 1968 designations, except RES, COM, or PUB which 

are 1938 Building Code occupancy group designations.

CEL OG6 3 ACCESSORY KITCHEN, BOILER ROOM, 
STORAGE

E

CEL OG190 3 CAFETERIAA-3

OS
P

60 3 PARKING 10 CARSS-2

ME
Z

10034 3 CLASSROOME

001 60134 3 CLASSROOMS, OFFICES, LOBBY, LIBRARY.E001

002 60254 3 CLASSROOMS,OFFICES.E002

003 60243 3 CLASSROOMS, OFFICES, NURSE'S ROOME003

004 100294 3 MULTIPURPOSE SPACE (GYNASIUM, 
LECTURE HALL) STORAGE/MOVABLE STAGE 
AREA, STORAGE ROOMS

A-3

RO
F

40 3 STAIR BULKHEAD AND MECHANICAL 
EQUIPMENT

E

END OF SECTION

FIRE DEPARTMENT APPROVAL DATED MARCH 31, 1969 (INTERIOR FIRE ALARM) AND ACC OUNT #C 706735 ISSUED 1968 (FUEL OIL) 
NO SCENIC ELEMENTS

Borough Commissioner Commissioner

END OF DOCUMENT 310136493/000  12/24/2018 9:41:55 AM






